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STATE OF OHIO 35 North Fourth Street,
1° Floor

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR Columbus, Ohio 43215

JiM PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE Telephone 614-466-4514
800-282-0370

Facsimile 614-728-7398
www.auditor.state.oh.us

City of Kettering
3600 Shroyer Road
Kettering, Ohio 45429

We have reviewed the Independent Auditor's Report of the City of Kettering, Montgomery
County, prepared by KPMG LLP, for the audit period January 1, 2000 through December 31,
2000. Based upon this review, we have accepted these reports in lieu of the audit required by
Section 117.11, Revised Code. The Auditor of State did not audit the accompanying financial
statements and, accordingly, we are unable to express, and do not express an opinion on them.

Our review was made in reference to the applicable sections of legislative criteria, as reflected by
the Ohio Constitution, and the Revised Code, policies, procedures and guidelines of the Auditor
of State, regulations and grant requirements. The City of Kettering is responsible for compliance
with these laws and regulations.

JIM PETRO
Auditor of State

May 14, 2001
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CITY KETTERING

March 30, 2001

Honorable Mayor, Members of City Council
and Citizens of Kettering, Ohio:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the City
of Kettering for the year ended December 31, 2000, is
hereby submitted. Responsibility for the accuracy of the
dataand the compl etenessand fairness of the presentation,
including all disclosures, restswith the City. To the best of
our knowledgeand belief, the encl osed dataare accuratein
all material respectsand arereported in amanner designed
to present fairly the financial position and results of
operations of the City. All disclosures necessary to enable
the reader to gain an understanding of the City’ sfinancial
activities have been included.

This Comprehensive Annual Finance Report continuesto
incorporate Government Accounting Standards Board
Statement No. 34 — Basic Financial Statements — and
Management's Discussion and Analysis — for State and
Local Governments. Statement No. 34 was developed to
makeannual financial reportsof stateandlocal governments
easier to understand and more useful to those who make
decisions using governmental financial information. We
first implemented Statement No. 34 in 1999, four years
earlier than the required date of implementation. Wewere
proud to be thefirst city in the State of Ohio to do so. This
year'sreport reflects our continuing effortsto disseminate
clear and useful financial information to our users.

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented
in three sections: Introductory, Financial and Statistical.
The Introductory Section includes this transmittal letter,
theCity’ sorganizational chartandalist of principal officials.
The Financial Section includes the independent auditors'
report, themanagement'sdiscussionandanalysis, thebasic
financial statements, required supplementary information
andthecombiningandindividual fundfinancial statements
and schedules. The Statistical Section includes selected
financia and demographi cinformation, generally presented
on aten-year basis.

The City provides various services including police and
fire protection, parks, recreation and cultural arts, street
maintenance, planning, zoning and other general
governmental services. The City does not maintain utility

or other operations that require the establishment of
enterprise funds. In addition to general governmental
activities, the City oversees the Kettering Volunteer
Firefighters Pension Plan, and the activitiesof the Plan are
included in the reporting entity. However, Montgomery
County, Greene County, Beavercreek, Centerville,
Kettering, and West Carrollton School Districts, Miami
Conservancy District, Miami Valley Regional Transit
Authority, Police and Firemen's Disability and Pension
FundandthePublic EmployeesRetirement System of Ohio
have not met the established criteria for inclusion in the
reporting entity and are excluded from this report. In
addition, the City is one of sixteen local citiesinvolvedin
apublic entity risk pool, Miami Valley Risk Management
Association, Inc.(MVRMA, Inc). Thisseparateentity does
not meet theestablished criteriaforinclusioninthereporting
entity and, accordingly isnotincludedintheCity’ sfinancial
report.

HISTORY AND BACKGROUND

K ettering was established asavillagein 1952. Threeyears
later, it achieved City status, adopted aHome Rule Charter
and approved the Council/Manager form of government.
The City of Kettering was named for its most outstanding
citizen, Charles F. K ettering, awell-known philanthropist
andinventor. K etteringinvented theautomotivesel f-starter,
and the “Bug,” theworld’ sfirst robot plane.

The City operates under a Council/Manager form of
government with aMayor and six City Council members
elected on a non-partisan basis for a term of four years.
Kettering isknown as aleader in many areas of municipal
government, including financial reporting, traffic system
management, policeservices, parks, recreationand cultural
arts programs, intergovernmental cooperation and
successfully structured volunteer programs. Kettering
citizens are known for their community spirit and
involvement. In fact, Kettering iscommonly known asthe
“City of Volunteers.”

Thequality of livinginany city canbemeasured best by the
quality of servicespeoplereceive. InKettering, peoplelike
what they find: a recent survey showed that 96% of all
residents were satisfied with City services and 97% were
satisfied with Kettering asaplaceto live.

3600 SHROYER ROAD ® KETTERING, OHIO 45429-2799
937-296-2400 ® FAX 937-296-3242
www.ci.kettering.oh.us



ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The economic environment for Kettering's business
community continued to be one of relative stability during
2000. K ettering’ sunemployment rate has consistently run
well bel ow theaveragesfor thelocal area, the State of Ohio
and the United States. This trend continued in 2000.
K ettering’ sunemployment ratefor 2000was1.9% compared
toratesof 3.8%for Montgomery County, 4.1%for the State
of Ohio and 4.0% for the United States.

Kettering’ sbroad range of businessesincludessevera magjor
employers. Thelargest of theseisDe phi AutomotiveSystems,
aformer division of General Motors, employing about 2,600
peopleinKettering. Since spinning off from General Motors
early in 1999, Delphi Automotive Systems financid future
continues to improve. The Kettering facility will be a key
manufacturing site for the company's new MagneRide
suspension system. Thenew system utilizesthevery latestin
technology and will be produced for a North American
customer in 2002 with a second contract to be fulfilled in
2003. Also, the company is expanding the K ettering plant's
production capability for the Continuoudly Variable Real
Time Damping System, another product that should make
K ettering more competitive. It appears that the company
and its employees are very serious about plans that they
agreed to in 1998 to make the plants profitable again. The
progress that has been made since the spin-off has been a
win-winsituationfor K etteringandtheentireMiami Valley.

TheCity'ssecondlargest employer istheK ettering Medical
Center (KMC) employing about 2,500 people. During
1999, Kettering Medical Center and Grandview Hospital
completed the merger that began three years ago. Hospital
officials said that the public can expect more coordinated
careat all of the new hospital'sfacilities, improved access
to KMC and Grandview under the expanded system and
financially stronger ingtitutions. BothKM Cand Grandview
are profitable institutions and officials believe that the
combined hospitals will be even more profitable in future
yearsthrough the efficienciesthey project will result from
the merger. With the merger compl ete, K ettering M edical
Center began somesignificant capital improvementstoits
Kettering facility during 2000. Theimprovementsinclude
construction of a 10,500-square-foot addition to the
administrative wing and a four-story, 19,500-sgquare-foot
additiontothesouth end of themain hospital toaccommodate
40 new bedsand to allow relocation of the helipad. Also, a
four-story, 172-car parking garage addition is under
construction, as well as a four-story, 74,100-square-foot
addition to the Kettering College of Medical Artsfacility.
Itwould appear that KM Ciscontinuingtolook tothefuture
with an emphasis on meeting the changing needs of the
healthcare industry and improving the effectiveness of all
patient services.

Kettering's future economic outlook continues to look

e

Reynoldsand Reynolds—Phase |l under construction

promising. The emphasis by the City through a number of
different efforts on economic development both within
Kettering and regionally is a high priority. The City's
Assistant to the City Manager for Economic Development
isresponsiblefor promoting K ettering asagood placetodo
business for new businesses, aswell as existing Kettering
businesses. It seems that the business community agrees.
Reynoldsand Reynol ds, aFortune 1000 company based in
Daytonsince 1866, iscurrently buildingitsPhasell facility
inthe Miami Valley Research Park. This 350,000-square-
foot facility will employ over 800 and is a very nice
complement to its existing 250,000-square-foot facility
employing over 700. The empl oyees should begin moving
into the newest facility before the end of 2001. The City
also beganredevel opment of Governor'sPlace (theformer
Hills and Dales Shopping Center) by demolishing the
building and creating a site plan during 2000. Heapy
Engineering will be the first owner on the site with anew
40,000-square-foot facility housing more than 100
employees. Circuit Pak, a producer of circuit boards, is
building anew 45,000-square-foot facility adjacent to the
new School of Advertising Arts. Also, UnitedHealthcare
announcedthat it will bring 300jobstoanew claimscenter
at the Miami Valley Research Park.

Inadditiontothemoresignificant expansionsand additions
in the Kettering business community, over 70 small
busi nesses opened or expanded in K ettering creating over
700 jobs.

MAJOR INITIATIVES

For theyear: By any measure, this new millennium year
was unforgettable. And the city of Kettering had alot to
celebrate in the Year 2000. Perhaps one of the city’'s
greatest highlightsin 2000 was the progress the city made
at theformer Hillsand Dal es Shopping Center, now known
as Governor’s Place. (The new name honorsthe late Ohio
Governor James M. Cox whose former home is located
near the site) Although Kettering bought the former
shopping center in 1999, real progress was made last year
whenthecity had thebuilding demolished and thenworked
todevel opasiteplanwith community input. And at theend



of 2000, Heapy Engineering— asuccessful and established
business— bought the first parcel of land at the sitefor its
new corporate headquarters.

The city also received 1.3 million dollarsin Montgomery
County EDGE funding. EDGE grant funds are being used
for two projectsat theMiami Valley Research Park — The
L earning Center and Phasel | of theReynoldsand Reynolds
project as well as for improvements at Building 2 at
Kettering Business Park. The Learning Center is a team
effort between the Research Park and Sinclair Community
College to provide technology courses on a non-credit or
credit basisto I nformati on Technol ogy workersthroughout
the park and the region to help maintain and devel op the
region’ s high-tech empl oyees.

In 2000, the city began or implemented new services and
programs including City Sites. City Sites is a public art
program to enhance neighborhoods and the urban
environment through the installation and maintenance of
public works of art. In 2000, we made a national call for
artists, selectedfinalistsand now areawaiting arrival of our
first piece due this spring.

I'n our ongoing effortsto maintain our neighborhoods, the
Planning and Development Department developed the
Property Maintenance Hotline so that residentscan call in
their concerns 24 hours a day. The city also revised its
property maintenance code to reduce the time it takes the
city to deal with negligent homeownersand absent owners
regarding tall grass complaints and other property
mai ntenance concerns.

In2000wecel ebrated our youth. Many of thecommunity’s
young people ran the second annual Y outh Summit, with
the help of the Healthy Y outh Task Force— an outgrowth
of the city’s First Youth Summit in 1999. More than 100
youth attended. And as a result of that summit, the new
youth council better knownasSTAND — StudentsTaking
aNew Direction— becameareality. The students already
have helped with community programs like Habitat for
Humanity, Go 4" and Kids Fest.

Working with the K ettering City Schoals, the city secured
$218,000 to meet the various needs of our youth through
enrichment after-school programs in our elementary and
middle schools and school community assistants that link
families with social service agencies and programs. The
Kettering City Schools and Kettering City Council and
selected staff members continued to meet jointly (about 3
meetingsin 2000). At atime when many cities and school
boardsareat odds, K etteringisfortunateto havetwobodies
that understand their successes are interdependent. We
jointly sponsored pancake breakfastsand ahotdog roast in
elementary school sasaway to build up our neighborhoods
and engage the community in discussionsabout issuesand
concerns.

'| /_’
Heapy Engineering—Artist's Rendering

Thecity also addressed the needs of our senior popul ation.
The city’selderly servicestask force studied the needs of
our seniors, and in the fall hired the city’s first Senior
Services Coordinator, Deborah Childress. Deborah serves
asaclearinghouse to help residents and their families and
friendsfindtheir way throughthemazeof servicesavailable
toseniors. Thecity a soworkedwiththeFranklin Foundation
to develop affordable housing for senior adults. K ettering
Park on Woodman Drivefeaturesa24-apartment compl ex
witharecreationroom, fireplace, kitchenand more. Nearly
100 people signed up for the apartments.

The city continued to be a leader in using technology to
reachresident by tying traffic cameraimagesat ninemajor
intersections to cable television. Each weekday morning
from 6 to 8, residents can view traffic moving throughout
K ettering on the government access channel. And in 2000
the city began its fourth television program, Kettering
Daily, a15-minuteshow eachweekday that bringsresidents
the most up-to-date information about the city.

Thecity celebratedinternational relationsnot only through
itsannual Sister City programsand exchanges, but in 2000
became a partner with Silistra, Bulgaria in the Resource
Cities Program. In July, three city staff members visited
Silistrato learn more about how K ettering could help them
develop in afree market economy. In September, Mayor
Ivo Andonov and his assistants visited Kettering to learn
more about our operations and together we developed a
work plantohel pre-establishtheir economy and redevel op
their central park area aong the Danube River.

Looking Ahead: Asbusy asthe year 2000 was, the city
looksfor bigger and better thingsfrom 2001. Inthe spring,
thecity will begin constructing anew roadway through the
Governor’s Place development. Several other companies
areinterested in theland, and by year’ send, officials may
havelittlelandleft to offer. Thisredevel opment, combined
with the street reconstruction project completed in the
adjacent Southern Hills neighborhood, and almost 40 new



homeshbeing devel opedintheOld L aneproject al ong South
Dixiearegeneratingreal excitementfor theredevel opment
of this area. City officials are confident the excitement
being generatedwill createadditional interest by developers
for the entire area.

Besidesthecontinued redevel opment of Governor’ sPlace,
thecity will focusonitscomprehensiveplan, aplanthat will
help city officialsdeterminewhat thecity shouldbelike 10
years from now. City officials in partnership with the
community are looking at every area of our city —
infrastructure, housing, transportation, community facilities,
industry, recreation and more — and trying to determine
what the future holds and what we should do as a city to
meet the changes ahead.

Finally, four more trips between Silistra, Bulgaria, and
Kettering, Ohio, are planned during the next year. During
thefirst trip, completed in early March, Kettering officials
hel pedimplement plansto createan economicdevel opment
incubator and to redevel op the park areaal ong the Danube
River.

Department Focus. They help keep the city moving —
traffic-wise that is. Designing and implementing the
construction and repair of the city’s public streets and
roadways is the job of the Kettering Engineering
Department, one branch of the Public Service Department.

Asthecity ages, keeping thepublicroadwaysingood shape
isbecoming anincreasingly bigger job. Y ear 2000 marked
the third year of the implementation of the city’s 10-year
residential streetimprovement program, with several street
and sidewalk repair projects underway, including Avalon
Avenue, Spaulding Road, San Rae Drive, and the Southern
Hillsarea. And summer isaparticularly busy time of year
for Engineering, with approximately 75 percent of the
construction work being done during this season.

Tohelpout, thedepartment hiredfiveseasonal workersthis
year: a fourth-year engineering intern, three engineering
students to work on the survey crews, and a receptionist.
They supplement thedepartment’ s15full-timeempl oyees,
which, inadditiontoPublic ServiceDirector Al Fullenkamp,
includes: one assistant city engineer, two engineers, one
project manager, one surveyor, nine technicians, one
secretary and one clerk.

Along with improving and maintaining city roadways, the
Engineering Department has a multitude of other
responsibilitiesincluding: enforcingthecity’ ssub-division
construction standards; coordinating street lighting;
designing, constructing and repairing sidewalks; and
designingand constructingstormdrainage. They alsoreview
land development plans; provide engineering, inspection,
surveying and drafting support to other city departments;
and processall kindsof citizenrequestsfor informationand

permits.

Inearly 1993, Engineeringwasmerged withthedepartments
of Transportation Engineering and Streets to create the
umbrella department of Public Serviceto enable the three
related departments to work more closely together.

That cooperation will be increasingly important with the
city’s 5-year capital improvement plan. Projects include
improvements to Bigger Road, West David Road and
widening County Line Road ... again.

“With the expansion of Reynolds and Reynolds, the needs
justkeepincreasing,” Al said. “Whatwedidto County Line
Road a couple years ago was from a plan that was already
10 years old and obviously planned before Reynolds and
Reynolds' decision to move to Research Park.”

Their work never ends.

ACCOUNTINGSYSTEM ANDBUDGETARY CONTROL

Management of the City is responsiblefor establishing and
maintaining aninternal control structure designed to ensure
that the assets of the City are protected from loss, theft or
misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data are
compiledtoallow for the preparation of financial statements
inconformity withgeneral ly accepted accounting principles.
Theinterna control structureisdesigned to providereason-
able, but not absol ute, assurancethat theseobj ectivesaremet.
The concept of reasonabl e assurancerecognizesthat: (1) the
cost of controls should not exceed the benefits likely to be
derived; and (2) theeval uation of costsand benefitsrequires
estimatesand judgmentshby management.

Budgetary Controls. The City maintains budgetary con-
trolstoensurecompliancewithlega provisionsembodiedin
the annual appropriated budget approved by City Council.
Activities of the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, the
Debt Service Fund and the Capital Projects Fund are in-
cluded in the annual appropriated budget. The level of
budgetary control (that is, the level a which expenditures
cannot legally exceed appropriated amounts) ismaintained at
the department level, except for the Community Develop-
ment Fund andtheCapital ProjectsFundwhichismaintained
at thefundlevel. Budgetary control ismaintained by encum-
bering the estimated purchaseamounts prior totherel ease of
purchase ordersto vendors. Purchaseorderswhichresultin
an overrun of budgeted balances are not released until
additional appropriations are made avail able. Open encum-
brancesarereported asreservations of fund balanceat fiscal
year end.

Cash Management. Cash, temporarily idleduring theyear
was invested in various instruments detailed below. As of
December 31, 2000, the City’ s cash resources were divided
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between cash andinvestmentsasfollows:

Cash and certificates of deposit $19,117,671
Repurchaseagreement 690,223
Corporate bonds 10,469,588
Pension plan pooledinvestment fund 1,232,777
Money market mutual funds 820,177
Statetreasurer’ sinvestment pool 1,853,058
TOTAL $34,183,494

Interest earned on investments in 2000 was $2,871,439 of
which$2,645,992isaccountedforinthegovernmental funds
and $225,447 is accounted for in the internal service funds
andthefiduciary funds.

The City’ sinvestment policy isto minimize credit and market
riskswhileaobtainingacompetitiveyield onitsportfolio.

Risk Management. Thetypes of insurance carried by the
City include: Genera Liability, Public Officials Liability,
Police Professional Liability, Employment PracticesLiabil-
ity, Fleet Liability, Paramedic Liability, Employee Life
Insurance, Employee Medical Insurance and State of Ohio
WorkersCompensation.

In addition to the City’'s General Administrative Policies
concerningrisk control, eachmaj or department hastheir own
risk control policies and programs which are designed to
control exposurestorisk by citizensand employees.

OTHERINFORMATION

Independent Audit. The general purpose financial state-
mentsof the City of Ketteringwereaudited by KPMG LLP,
Certified Public Accountants. Their unqualified opinion has
beenincludedinthefinancia section of thisreport.

Awards. The Government Finance Officers Association of
theUnited Statesand Canada(GFOA) awarded aCertificate
of Achievement for Excellencein Financial Reportingtothe
City of Kettering, Ohio for its comprehensive annua finan-
cia report for thefiscal year ended December 31, 1999. The
Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national award
recognizing conformance with the highest standards for
preparation of stateand local government financial reports.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a
government unit must publish an easily readable and effi-
ciently organized comprehensive annual financial report,
whosecontentsconformto program standards. Suchreports
must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles
and applicablelegal requirements.

A Certificateof Achievementisvalidfor aperiod of oneyear
only. The City of Kettering has received a Certificate of
Achievement for the last eighteen consecutive years (fiscal
years ended 1982-1999). We believe our current report

continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement
Program requirements, and weare submitting it to GFOA.

In addition, the City also received the GFOA’s Award for
Distinguished Budget Presentation for its annual appropri-
ated budget for thefiscal year beginning January 1, 2000. In
order to qualify for the Distinguished Budget Presentation
Award, the City’ sbudget document was judged to be profi-
cientin several categoriesincluding policy documentation,
financial planning and organization.

Acknowledgements. A note of sincere appreciation is
extended to the many conscientious people who have con-
tributed so much of their timeand effort to the preparation of
thisreport. TheFinanceDepartment staff, inparticular, areto
be commended for their commitment to professional excel-
lenceasexemplified by the contents of thisreport.

Finally, contributionstothefinancial condition of theCity of
K ettering by theMayor, membersof City Council, Assistant
City Manager and Department Directors cannot be overem-
phasized. Their guidance and support represent invaluable
factors necessary for the City to continue to manage the
financial affairs and reporting requirements of municipal
government withintheK ettering Community.

Respectfully submitted,

A C Togain

Steven C. Husemann
City Manager

Niecg H Ly

Nancy H. Gregory, CPA
Director of Finance
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Two Nationwide Plaza Telephone 614 249 2300
Columbus, OH 43215 Fax 614 249 2348

Independent Auditors’ Report

Honorable Mayor, Members of City Council
and City Manager
City of Kettering:

We have audited the basic financial statements of the City of Kettering, Ohio (the City) as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2000, as listed in the accompanying table of contents. These basic financial statements are
the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these basic financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the basic financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall basic financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the City as of December 31, 2000, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 24, 2001 on our
consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering
the results of our audit.

The Management's Discussion and Analysis and the budgetary information on pages 2-6 and pages 31-37,
respectively, are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted
principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements of the City, taken
as a whole. The accompanying financial information listed on pages 39-50 is presented for the purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements of the City. The supplemental data

has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our
opinion, is fairly presented, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

KPMa LLP

March 24, 2001

l .. . KPMG LLP KPMG LLP a US. limited liability partnership, is
a member of KPMG International, & Swiss association.



CITY OF KETTERING, OHIO

MANAGEMENT’SDISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Our discussion and analysisof the City of Kettering’ sfinancial performanceprovidesan overview of the City’ sfinancial
activities for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

1. TheCity’snet assetsincreased by over $8.39 million or 7.1%.

2. The City received an infrastructure contribution of $2.98 million.

3. Duringtheyear, the City had revenuesthat were $5.41 million higher (excluding the$2.98 million contribution) than
the $46.7 million in expensesincurred for all governmental programs.

4. The General Fund reported a surplus of over $1.56 million.

USING THISANNUAL REPORT

Thisannual report consistsof aseriesof financial statements. The Statement of Net A ssetsand the Statement of Activities
(on pages 7 and 8) provide information about the activities of the City asawhole and present alonger-term view of the
City’sfinances. Fund financial statementsstart on page 9. For governmental activities, these statementstell how these
serviceswerefinancedintheshorttermaswell aswhat remainsfor futurespending. Fundfinancial statementsal soreport
the City’ soperationsin moredetail thanthe government-wide statementsby providing informati on about the City’ smost
significant funds. Theremaining statementsprovidefinancial information about activitiesfor whichthe City actssolely
as atrustee or agent for the benefit of those outside of the government.

Reporting the City asa Whole
The Satement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities

Our analysisof the City asawholebeginson page 3. Oneof the most important questionsasked about the City’ sfinances
is, “Isthe City asawhole better off or worse off asaresult of theyear’' s activities?” The Statement of Net Assets and
the Statement of Activitiesreport information about the City asawholeand about itsactivitiesin away that help answer
thisquestion. These statementsinclude all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which issimilar
to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. All of the current year’ srevenues and expensesaretaken into
account regardless of when cash isreceived or paid.

These two statements report the City’s net assets and changes in them. You can think of the City’s net assets—the
difference between assetsand liabilities— asoneway to measurethe City’ sfinancial health, or financial position. Over
time, increases or decreases in the City’s net assets are one indicator of whether its financial health isimproving or
deteriorating. Y ouwill need to consider other nonfinancial factors, however, such aschangesin the City’ sproperty tax
base, the condition of the City’ sroads, the condition of the City’ sneighborhoods, and thereputation of thepublic schools
to assess the overall health of the City.

Reporting the City’s Most Significant Funds
Fund Financial Satements

Our analysis of the City’s major funds begins on page 5. The fund financial statements begin on page 9 and provide
detailedinformation about themost significant funds— not the City asawhole. Somefundsarerequiredto beestablished
by State law and by bond covenants. However, the Finance Director establishes many other funds to help control and
manage money for particular purposes or to show that the City is meeting legal responsihilities for using certain taxes,
grants, and other money (likegrantsreceived fromtheU.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development). TheCity’'s
two kinds of funds — governmental and proprietary — use different accounting approaches.
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e Governmenta funds— Most of the City’ shasic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how
money flowsinto and out of thosefundsand thebal ances| eft at year-end that areavailablefor spending. Thesefunds
are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other
financial assetsthat can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-
term view of the City’s general government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund
information helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near
futuretofinancetheCity’ sprograms. Wedescribetherel ationship (or differences) between governmental activities
(reported inthe Statement of Net Assetsand the Statement of Activities) and governmental fundsin areconciliation
at the bottom of the fund financial statements.

e Proprietary funds— The City usesinternal servicefunds(acomponent of proprietary funds) to report activitiesthat
provide supplies and servicesfor the City’ s other programs and activities. An example of an internal service fund
would be the City’s Administrative Operations Fund which accounts for activities of the Vehicle Maintenance
Center, the Print Shop, and others. Proprietary funds are reported in the sameway that all activitiesarereportedin
the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities.

TheCity as Trustee
Reporting the City's Fiduciary Responsibilities

The City isthetrustee, or fiduciary, for itsvolunteer firefighters pension plan. Itisalsoresponsiblefor other assetsthat
— because of atrust arrangement — can be used only for thetrust beneficiaries. All of the City’ sfiduciary activitiesare
reported in separate Statements of Fiduciary Net Assets and Changesin Fiduciary Net Assets on page 16. We exclude
theseactivitiesfromtheCity’ sother financial statementsbecausethe City cannot usetheseassetstofinanceitsoperations.
The City isresponsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used for their intended purposes.

THECITY ASAWHOLE

For both 2000 and 1999, the City has shown a 7.1% increase in Total net assets. Both years aso saw significant
contributionswhichaccount for alargeportion of theincrease. For 1999 thecontributionwasintheformof a$4.2million
building and for 2000 the contribution was $2.98 million in infrastructure (streets). Even excluding thisinfrastructure
contributionin 2000, revenuesgenerated were$52.1 millionand expensesfromall programswere$46.7 millionresulting
inasurplusfor theyear of over $5.4 million. Theunrestricted net assets— thepart of net assetsthat canbeusedtofinance
day-to-day operationswithout constraintsestablished by debt covenants, enablingl egisl ation, or other legal requirements
— increased $.94 million. Thefollowing two tables present condensed information on Net Assets and Changesin Net
Assetsfor the year.

NET ASSETS
2000 1999

Current and other assets $53,109,612 $55,776,203
Capital assets 102,326,627 94,170,823

Total assets 155,436,239 149,947,026
Long-term debt outstanding (13,553,541) (14,754,287)
Other ligbilities (13,947,930) (15,649,892)

Total liabilities (27,501,471) (30,404,179)
Net assets:

Invested in capital assets, net of debt 91,355,281 83,168,667

Restricted 2,835,901 3,570,202

Unrestricted 33,743,585 32,803,978
Total net assets $127,934,767 $119,542,847
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CHANGESIN NET ASSETS

2000 1999
Revenues
Program revenues:
Charges for services $5,596,766 $5,501,749
Federal grants 1,385,929 951,147
State and local grants 412,387 892,375
Special assessments 1,418,451 1,168,726
Sponsorships and contributions 3,118,478 4,403,736
General revenues:
Income taxes 23,379,834 22,512,947
Property taxes 7,740,145 7,363,568
Other taxes 8,184,945 6,181,380
Investment earnings 2,400,657 2,256,674
Other general revenue 1,491,740 1,438,076
Total revenues 55,129,332 52,670,378
Program expenses
General government 10,324,836 8,882,212
Police 9,413,721 9,163,871
Fire 6,356,550 6,374,476
Public works 9,791,899 9,366,194
Leisure services 10,231,388 10,427,534
Interest on long-term debt 619,018 749,636
Total expenses 46,737,412 44,963,923
Increase (decrease) in net assets $8,391,920 $7,706,455

The following table presents the cost of each of the City’ sfour largest programs-poalice, fire, public works and leisure
services-aswell as each program’ s net cost (total cost lessrevenues generated by the activities). The net cost showsthe
financial burden that was placed on the City’ staxpayers by each of these functions.

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Total Cost of Services Net Cost of Services
2000 1999 2000 1999
Police $9,413,721 $9,163,871 $9,349,083 $9,121,479
Fire 6,356,550 6,374,476 6,355,945 6,372,176
Public works 9,791,899 9,366,194 4,422,113 7,381,653
Leisure services 10,231,388 10,427,534 6,162,432 6,387,385

All others 10,324,836 8,882,212 7,896,810 6,233,861



The capital asset activity for the year wastypical of most years. The City ended 2000 with total net capital assets of
$102,326,627. Of thistotal, $8,967,212 was not being depreciated and the capital assets being depreciated totaled
$144,720,064 with accumulated depreciation of $51,360,649.

The City issued no new debt in the current year. At December 31, 2000, the City had various debt i ssues outstanding,
whichincluded $8,997,168 of general obligationbonds, $1,288,184 of special assessment debt with city commitment and
$685,994 of non-interest bearing promissory notes. Asof December 31, 2000, the City’ snet general obligation bonded
debt of $8,879,636 was well below the legal limit of $106,695,428 and debt per capita equaled $154.42.

THE CITY’SFUNDS

Asthe City completed the year, its governmental funds (as presented in the balance sheet on pages 9 and 10) reported
acombined fund balance of $34.8 million, which isdlightly below last year’ stotal of $35.4 million.

Thefollowing schedul e presents asummary of the governmental fund revenuesfor the fiscal year ended December 31,
2000, and the amounts and percentages of increases and decreasesin relation to prior year.

INCREASE PERCENT

2000 PERCENT (DECREASE) INCREASE
REVENUE SOURCE AMOUNT OFTOTAL OVER 1999 (DECREASE)
Income taxes $23,566,678 44.44% $1,053,731 4.68%
Property taxes 7,740,145 14.60% 376,577 5.11%
Licenses and permits 459,832 0.87% 64,028 16.18%
Intergovernmental revenue 10,035,712 18.93% 2,235,627 28.66%
Charges for services 4,001,529 7.55% (20,003) (0.50%)
Fines and forfeits 1,135,404 2.14% 50,991 4.70%
Investment earnings 2,645,992 4.99% 634,654 31.55%
Special assessments 1,418,452 2.67% 249,726 21.37%
Refunds & reimbursements 1,500,421 2.83% 129,230 9.42%
Miscellaneous 522,141 0.98% (130,979) (20.05%)
Total $53,026,306 100.00% $4,643,582 9.60%

Revenuesfor all governmental funds combined were 9.60% higher thanin 1999. Licensesand permitswereup 16% due
to several large construction projects and an overall increase in the number of permits. Intergovernmental revenue
increased 29% primarily because of anincreasein estatetax receipts. Higher interest rates account for the 32% increase
ininvestment earningsthisyear. And specia assessmentswere21% higher becauseof anunusually high number of people
who paid off their assessment in the current year rather than paying for them, over time, through their property taxes.

Thefollowing schedule presentsasummary of the governmental fund expendituresfor the fiscal year ended December
31, 2000, and the amounts and percentages of increases and decreasesin relation to prior year.
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INCREASE PERCENT
2000 PERCENT (DECREASE) INCREASE
FUNCTION AMOUNT OFTOTAL OVER 1999 (DECREASE)
Current:
General government $9,501,717 17.59% $343,605 3.75%
Palice 9,353,231 17.32% 38,103 0.41%
Fire 7,125,540 13.19% 1,025,572 16.81%
Public works 7,053,955 13.06% 333,363 4.96%
Leisure services 8,774,617 16.25% (116,210) (1.31%)
Capital improvements 9,988,482 18.50% (542,139) (5.15%)
Debt service:
Principal 1,583,134 2.93% 60,000 3.94%
Interest 625,480 1.16% (72,033) (10.33%)
Total $54,006,156 100.00% $1,070,261 2.02%

Expendituresfor all governmental funds combined were only 2% higher thanin 1999. Firefunction expenditureswere
17% higher because of some large capital equipment purchases.

There were no significant variationsin the City’ s original General Fund budget and the final General Fund budget. In
contrast to this, there was a significant variance between actual expenditures and final budgeted expenditures for
“Transfersto other funds.” The City planned many new capital projects. In hindsight, the number of projectsanticipated
to be completed during the year was overly optimistic. Thiscoupledwith thelarge estate tax receiptsfor the year made
any actual transfers out of the General Fund and into the Capital Projects Fund unnecessary for the year.



7 CITY OF KETTERING, OHIO

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
DECEMBER 31, 2000

ASSETS
Pooled cash and investments (note 2)
Receivables:
Income taxes (net of allowance for $184,394)
Property taxes
Interest
Accounts
Special assessments
Loans (net of allowance for $122,458)
Due from other governments
Prepaid expenses
Inventory
Asset held for resale
Capital assets not being depreciated (note 7)
Capital assets being depreciated, net (note 7)
Total assets
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Salary and benefits payable
Accrued interest payable
Deferred revenue
Long-term liabilities (note 11)
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Total liabilities
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:
Debt service
Community development block grant
Other purposes
Unrestricted
Total net assets

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

2000

$31,990,530

5,055,700
7,993,671
312,543
172,719
2,215,784
1,888,761
1,527,755
109,118
290,708
1,552,323
8,967,212
93,359,415

155,436,239

1,938,399
1,436,165
45,661
10,527,706

3,326,561
10,226,980

27,501,472

91,355,281

172,832
2,168,695
494,374
33,743,585

__S127,034.767_



CITY OF KETTERING, OHIO

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

Total
Program Revenues Net(Expense)
Operating Capital Revenue and
Charges for Grants and Grants and Changes in
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Net Assets
General government $10,324,836 $1,686,309 $716,717 $25,000 ($7,896,810)
Police 9,413,721 64,638 (9,349,083)
Fire 6,356,550 605 (6,355,945)
Public works 9,791,899 2,660 917,755 4,449,371 (4,422,113)
Leisure services 10,231,388 3,907,797 161,159 (6,162,432)
Interest on long-term debt 619,018 (619,018)
Total $46,737,412 $5,596,766 $1,860,874 $4,474,371 (34,805,401)
General revenues:
Taxes:
Income taxes 23,379,834
Property taxes, levied for general purposes 6,533,352
Property taxes, levied for debt service 1,206,793
Other taxes (note 5) 8,184,945
Investment earnings 2,400,657
Refunds and reimbursements 1,161,602
Miscellaneous 330,138
Total general revenues 43,197,321
Change in net assets 8,391,920
Net assets--beginning, as restated (note 14) 119,542,847
Net assets--ending $127,934,767

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.



9 CITY OF KETTERING, OHIO

FUND BALANCE SHEETS - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2000

ASSETS
Pooled cash and investments
Receivables:
Income taxes (net of allowance for $184,394)
Property taxes
Interest
Accounts
Special assessments
Loans (net of allowance for $122,458)
Due from other governments
Prepaid expenditures
Inventory
Asset held for resale
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Deferred revenue
Total liabilities

FUND BALANCES
Reserved for:

Loans receivable

Encumbrances

Prepaid expenditures

Inventory

Asset held for resale
Unreserved:

Designated for subsequent years' expenditures

Undesignated
Total fund balances
Total liabilities and fund balances

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

Major Special
Parks,
General Street Recreation &
Fund Maintenance Cultural Arts
$26,504,389 $180,658 $317,113
5,055,700
6,535,821
312,543
140,089 289 5,916
300,000
315,112 767,798
86,007 2,559 14,008
31,210
1,552,323
$40,801,984 $982,514 $337,037
$869,354 $127,765 $105,101
793,699 122,565 148,838
9,812,261 571,200 11,265
11,475,314 821,530 265,204
766,769 2,501 47,107
86,007 2,559 14,008
31,210
1,552,323
2,000,000
24,921,571 124,714 10,718
29,326,670 160,984 71,833
$40,801,984 $982,514 $337,037




Revenue Funds

Other Special Revenue

Fraze Community Debt Capital Governmental
Pavilion Development Service Projects Funds

$139,000 $310,096 $117,532 $2,573,632 $1,264,831

1,148,485 309,365

1 6 17,083 46

1,468,184 447,600
1,888,761

51,075 188,454 187,633

1,927 464

$140,928 $2,249,938 $2,734,201 $3,226,769 $1,762,339

$7,349 $30,168 $429,775 $261,378

4,015 279,342

30,440 51,075 $2,616,669 457,600 564,384

41,804 81,243 2,616,669 887,375 1,105,104

1,888,761

29,194 1,230,038 1,105,307

1,927 464
97,197 250,740 117,532 1,109,356 (448,536)

99,124 2,168,695 117,532 2,339,394 657,235

$140,928 $2,249,938 $2,734,201 $3,226,769 $1,762,339

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets (page 7) are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and therefore are deferred in the funds:
Income taxes receivable
Grants and other taxes receivable

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities. The assets and liabilities of the

internal service funds are included in governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets.

The following long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds:
Bonds and notes payable
Vacation and sick leave benefits

Accrued interest on bonds payable
Net Assets of Governmental Activities

Total
Governmental
Funds

$31,407,251

5,055,700
7,993,671
312,543
163,430
2,215,784
1,888,761
1,510,072
104,965
31,210
1,552,323

552235710

$1,830,890
1,348,459
14,114,894

17,294,243

1,888,761
3,180,916
104,965
31,210
1,552,323

2,000,000

26,183,292

34,941,467

101,591,035

2,183,039
1,404,149

1,247,805
(10,971,346)

(2,415,721)
(45,661)

$127,934,767

10



11 CITY OF KETTERING, OHIO

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

Major Special
Parks,
General Street Recreation &
Fund Maintenance Cultural Arts
REVENUES
Income taxes $23,566,678
Property taxes 6,206,693
Licenses and permits 457,172 $2,660
Intergovernmental revenue 2,046,994 1,766,238 $25,159
Charges for services 18,011 2,429,660
Fines and forfeits 1,043,089
Investment earnings 2,507,862
Special assessments 330,527
Refunds and reimbursements 921,299 220,370 64,836
Miscellaneous 122,876 10,383 8,964
Total revenues 37,221,201 1,999,651 2,528,619
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 8,113,675
Police 8,346,197
Fire 7,125,540
Public works 2,527,611 4,362,970
Leisure services 6,843,779
Capital improvements
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Total expenditures 26,113,023 4,362,970 6,843,779
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 11,108,178 (2,363,319) (4,315,160)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 2,110,000 4,317,000
Transfers out (9,543,432)
Sale of city assets
Net change in fund balance 1,564,746 (253,319) 1,840
Fund balances--beginning, as restated (note14) 27,761,924 414,303 69,993
Fund balances--ending $29,326,670 $160,984 $71,833

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.




Revenue Funds

Other Special Revenue

Fraze Community Debt Capital Governmental
Pavilion Development Service Projects Funds

$1,206,793 $326,659

$664,738 $4,484,721 1,047,862

$1,478,137 75,721
92,315

87,920 50,210

181,230 906,695

958 120 278,178 14,660
189,700 64,464 68,136 57,618
1,668,795 729,322 1,475,943 5,737,730 1,665,045
809,527 2,915 575,600

1,007,034

163,374

1,921,163 9,675
363,062 6,694,815 2,930,605

1,583,134
625,480
1,921,163 1,172,589 2,211,529 6,694,815 4,686,288
(252,368) (443,267) (735,586) (957,085) (3,021,243)
275,000 700,000 2,141,432
326,929

22,632 (116,338) (35,586) (957,085) (879,811)
76,492 2,285,033 153,118 3,296,479 1,537,046
$99,124 $2,168,695 $117,532 $2,339,394 $657,235

Net change in Fund Balance - Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities (page 8) are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures while governmental activities report depreciation expense to

allocate those expenditures over the life of the assets. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceed depreciation.

In the Stmnt of Activities, only the gain on the sale of city assets is reported, while in the governmental funds, the proceeds

from the sale increase financial resources. Thus, the change in net assets differ from the change in fund balance by the

cost of the asset sold.
Revenues in the Stmnt of Activities that do not provide current financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.

Income taxes receivable
Grants receivable
Interest receivable
Contribution of capital asset

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in
the Statement of Net Assets.

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current financial resources and therefore are
not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Vacation and sick leave benefits
Interest payable

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities, to individual funds. The net

revenue (expense) of the internal service funds is reported with governmental activities. (See page 14.)

Change in Net Assets on the Statement of Activities

Total
Governmental
Funds

$23,566,678
7,740,145
459,832
10,035,712
4,001,529
1,135,404
2,645,992
1,418,452
1,500,421
522,141

53,026,306

9,501,717
9,353,231
7,125,540
7,053,955
8,774,617
9,988,482

1,583,134
625,480

54,006,156

(979,850)

9,543,432
(9,543,432)
326,929

(652,921)

35,594,388

534,041,467

($652,921)

5,736,505

(458,348)
(186,844)
(52,449)
(245,336)
2,981,827
1,583,134
(125,555)

6,462

(194,555)

_$6.30L,020_
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13 CITY OF KETTERING, OHIO

BALANCE SHEET
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2000

ASSETS
Current assets:
Pooled cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Due from other governments
Prepaid expenses
Inventory
Total current assets
Noncurrent assets:
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Less: Accumulated depreciation
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Accrued vacation and sick leave benefits
Total liabilities
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets
Unrestricted
Total net assets
Total liabilities and net assets

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

Governmental
Activities-
Internal

Service Funds

$583,279
9,289
17,683
4,153
259,498
873,902

809,359
1,790,330

(1,864,097)

735,592

$1,609,494

$107,509
87,706
195,215

166,474
361,689

735,592
512,213

1,247,805
$1,609,494



CITY OF KETTERING, OHIO

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Total operating revenues
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personal services
Repairs and maintenance
Contractual services
Other materials and expenses
Depreciation
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment earnings
Change in net assets
Total net assets--beginning
Total net assets--ending

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

Governmental
Activities-
Internal

Service Funds

$5,760,901

5,760,901

2,100,796
878,658
2,363,135
500,911
195,593

6,039,003
(278,192)

83,637
(194,555)
1,442,360

__S1207605_



15 CITY OF KETTERING, OHIO

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
Increase (Decrease) in cash

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received for services
Cash paid to suppliers for goods or services
Cash paid to employees for services

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of capital assets
Sale of capital assets

Net cash used by capital and related financing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment earnings

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash

Cash at beginning of year
Cash at end of year

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET
CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
(Increase) decrease in receivables
(Increase) decrease in inventories
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Net (increase) decrease in other operating net assets
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

Governmental
Activities-

Internal

Service Funds

$5,734,513

(3,770,493)
(2,169,961)

(205,941)

(115,794)
11,970

(103,824)

83,637
83,637

(226,128)

809,407

$583,279

($278,192)

195,593
(26,320)
3,537
(34,650)
(65,909)

(3205,941)



CITY OF KETTERING, OHIO

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
DECEMBER 31, 2000

Decesed Police

Volunteer Dependents
Firefighter Private Purpose Agency
Pension Trust Funds

ASSETS
Pooled cash and investments $58,179 $620,004
Investments with fiscal agent, at fair value:

Unallocated insurance contracts $1,232,777

Other investments 282,004
Accounts receivable 35,644

Total assets 1,268,421 58,179 $902,008
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $60,234
Withholdings payable 554,899
Undistributed moneys 282,004
Unclaimed moneys 4,871
Total liabilities T $902,008

NET ASSETS
Held in trust for pension benefits and other purposes $1,268,421 $58,179
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
ADDITIONS
Employer contributions $35,644
Investment earnings (loss) 137,501 $4,308

Total additions 173,145 4,308
DEDUCTIONS
Pension payments 59,387

Total deductions 59,387
Net increase (decrease) 113,758 4,308
Net assets--beginning of year 1,154,663 53,871
Net assets--end of year $1,268,421 $58,179

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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NOTESTO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED DECEM BER 31, 2000

1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A. Reporting Entity

TheCity of Kettering, Ohio, (the" City") isahomerulemunicipal corporationunder thelawsof theStateof Ohioand
operatesunder itsown Charter. Thecurrent Charter, which providesfor aCouncil/Manager form of government,
wasadopted in 1955 and has subsequently been amended.

The City provides various services including police and fire protection, parks, recreation, street maintenance,
planning, zoning, and other general government services. TheCity doesnot maintainany utility or other operations
that would requirethe establishment of enterprisefunds.

The financid reporting entity consists of (a) the primary government, (b) organizations for which the primary
governmentisfinancially accountable, and () governmental organizationsfor whichtheprimary governmentisnot
financially accountable, but for which the nature and significance of their financial relationship with the primary
government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity’ s financial statements to be misleading or
incomplete. Component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the primary
government arefinancially accountable. Inaddition, component unitscanbegovernmental organizationsforwhich
the primary government isnot financially accountable, but for which the nature and significance of their financial
relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial
statements to be misleading or incomplete. No separate government units meet the criteria for inclusion as a
component unit.

B. Basisof Presentation

Government-WideSatements: TheStatement of net assetsandthestatement of activitiesdisplay informationabout
the primary government, except for itsfiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double
counting of internal activities. Governmenta activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental
revenuesand other nonexchangetransactions. The City hasno business-typeactivities.

Thestatement of activities presentsacompari son between direct expensesand program revenuesfor each function
of the City'sgovernmental activities. Direct expensesarethosethat are specifically associated with aprogramor a
functionand, therefore, arecl early identifiabl etoaparti cul ar function. Programrevenuesinclude(a) chargespaid by
recipientsof goodsor servicesoffered by theprogramsand (b) grantsand contributionsthat arerestri cted tomeeting
the operational or capita requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program
revenues, including all taxes, are presented asgeneral revenues.

Fund Financial Satements: Thefund financia statements provide information about the City's funds, including
fiduciary. Separate statementsfor each fund category — governmental, proprietary and fiduciary — arepresented.
Theemphasisof fundfinancial statementsisonmajor governmental funds, each displayedinaseparatecolumn. All
remaining governmental fundsare aggregated and reported asnonmajor funds.

The City reportsthefollowing major governmental funds:

General Fund — Thisfundisthegeneral operating fund of theCity. Itisusedtoaccountfor all financia resources
except thoserequired to be accounted for inanother fund.

Street Maintenance Fund — This fund accounts for the portion of gasoline tax and motor vehicle license fees
restricted for maintenanceof streets.



Parks, Recreation & Cultural Arts Fund — Thisfund accounts for moneys received and expended for the
Parks, Recreation & Cultural Arts Department programs and activities.

Fraze Pavilion Fund — This fund accounts for moneys received and expended for the Fraze Pavilion
amphitheater operations.

Community Development Fund — Thisfund accounts for grants received from the Department of Housing
and Urban Development (HUD). Grants are restricted for various purposes designated by HUD.

Debt Service Fund — Thisfund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of,
general, special assessment and promissory notelong-term debt principal and interest.

Capital ProjectsFund — Thisfund isused to account for thefinancia resourcesto be used for theacquisition or
construction of major capital facilities (other than thosefinanced by proprietary funds).

Additionally, the City reportsthefollowing fund types:

Internal Service Funds— Theinterna service funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services
provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the City, or to other governmentson a
cost-reimbursement basis. The City hasno unbilled servicereceivablesat year end.

Pension Trust Fund — Thisfund reportsatrust arrangement under whi ch assets are accumul ated in order to pay
retirement benefitstothe City’ svolunteer firefighters.

Private Purpose Trust Fund — This fund reports a trust arrangement under which principal and income
benefit the dependents of deceased police officers.

Agency Funds— Thesefundsaccount for assetsheld by the City asan agent for: 1) variouslocal governments
collected by the municipal court 2) payroll withholdings 3) unclaimed moneys and other miscellaneous
activities.

C. Basisof Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in the accounts and
reportedinthefinancia statements. Basisof accounting rel atestothetiming of themeasurementsmade, regardless
of themeasurement focusapplied.

Government-wide, proprietary andfiduciary fund financial statementsmeasureandreport al assets(bothfinancial
and capital), liabilities, revenues, expenses, gainsand | osses using the economi ¢ resourcesmeasurement focusand
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when aliability is
incurred, regardless of thetiming of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenuesin the year for
which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as al digibility requirements
imposed by the provider have been met.

All governmental fundsareaccountedfor usingacurrent financia resourcesmeasurement focusandarereportedon
themodified accrua basisof accounting. Revenues arerecognized in theaccounting period in which they become
measurable and available. “Measurable’” meansthe amount of the transaction can be determined and “ avail bl e’
meanscollectiblewithinthecurrent period or soonenoughthereafter tobeusedto pay liabilitiesof thecurrent period
which, fortheCity’ spurposes, isconsideredtobe30daysafter year end. Revenuesconsidered susceptibletoaccrual
are community development block grants, delinquent property taxes, income taxes and interest on investments.



Property taxesleviedbeforeyear-end arenot recognized asrevenueuntil thenext calendar year. Thefiscal periodfor
which property taxesarelevied at year-endin the State of Ohioisthe succeeding calendar year.

Expendituresarerecognizedintheaccountingperiodinwhichthefundliability isincurred, if measurable, except for
interest on unmatured general long-term debt, and on specia assessment indebtedness collateralized by specia
assessment levies, which are recognized when due. Inventory and prepaid expenditures are recorded in the
governmental fund types and charged as expenditures when used. A portion of the fund balance is reserved in
governmental fundsfor theamount of inventory and prepaid expenditures.

Private-Sector standards of accounting and reporting i ssued on or before November 30, 1999, arefollowed in both
thegovernment-wideand proprietary fundfinancia statementstotheextent that thosestandardsdonot conflictwith
or contradi ct guidance of the Governmental Accounting StandardsBoard.

D. Pooled Cash and Investmentsand | nvestmentswith Fiscal Agent
All investmentsare stated at fair val uewhich are based on quoted market prices.
E. Inventory

Inventory isvalued at cost (specificidentification method in theinternal servicefundsand FIFO (first-in, first-out)
method inthe special revenuefunds.) Inventoriesarerecorded asexpenses/expenditureswhen used.

F. Capital Assets

Capitd assets include land, improvements to land, buildings, building improvements, machinery, equipment,
infrastructure and all other assetsthat are used in operations and that haveinitial useful lives extending beyond a
singlereporting period. I nfrastructureisdefined aslong-lived capital assetsthat normally arestationary innatureand
normally can be preserved for a significantly greater number of years than most capital assets. Examples of
infrastructureincluderoads, bridgesand drainagesystems.

All capital assetsare valued at historica cost, or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost isnot available.
Donated capital assetsare valued at their estimated fair market value at thetime received. Interest on constructed
capital assetsiscapitalized.

When capital assetsare purchased, they are capitalized and depreciated inthe government-widestatementsand the
proprietary fund statements. The City capitalizesal | assetswithacost of $5,000 or greater and auseful lifeof at least
two years. Capital assets are recorded as expenditures of the current period in the government fund financial
statements.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Estimated
useful livesof thevariousclasses of depreciable capital assetsareasfollows:

M achinery and Equipment 3-20years
Buildingsand Improvements 15-30years
Infrastructure 20-40years
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G. Interfund Transactions

During the course of normal operations, the City has numeroustransactionsamong funds, most of which areinthe
form of transfers of resourcesto provide services, construct assets and service debt. The accompanying financial
statementsgeneral ly reflect suchtransactionsastransfers, with theexception of theinternal servicefundswhichare
usedtoaccount for varioussuppliesand serviceswhicharethen charged back totheappropriatefund onan* asused”
basis. Theinterna servicefundsrecord such chargesasoperating revenues; al other City fundsrecord paymentsto
theinternal servicefundsasoperating expenditures. Theclassification of amountsrecorded assubsidies, advances,
or equity contributionsisdetermined by City management.

H. Reservesand Designations

Reservesindicate portionsof fund equity not appropriablefor expendituresand/or legally segregated for aspecific
futureuse.

Designationsindicate tentative plansfor financial resource utilizationin afuture period. Such plansare subject to
change; they may never belegally authorized or resultin expenditures/expenses.

l. Grantsand Other Intergovernmental Revenues

All reimbursement-type grants are recorded as intergovernmental receivables and revenues or deferred revenue
whentherelated expendituresareincurred.

J. Useof Estimates

The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requiresmanagement to make estimatesand assumptionsthat affect thereported amountsof assetsandliabilitiesat
thedate of the basic financia statementsand the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actua resultscould differ fromthose estimates.

POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The City maintainsacash and investmentspool that isavailablefor useby al funds, except the pension trust fund.
Eachfundtype’ sportionof thispoal isdisplayed ontheFund Balance Sheetsas* Pooled cashandinvestments.” The
depositsandinvestmentsof thepensiontrust fundareheld separately fromthoseof other City fundsand displayedas
“Unallocated insurance contracts.”

Cash and cash equivalents in the internal service funds consist of cash and money market funds which can be
withdrawnwithout prior noticeor penalty.

Deposits: At year end, the carrying amount of the City’s deposits was $19,117,671 and the bank balance was
$19,684,835. Thebank balanceisinsured or collateralized with securitiesheld by the City or its safekeeping agent
intheCity’ sname.

Investments. All investments are reported at fair value which is based on quoted market prices. The City’s
investment policy authorizes investments in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, agencies, and instrumentalities,
commercia paper rated A-l by Standard & Poor’s Corporation or P-| by Moody’s Commercial Paper Record,
corporate bonds rated A or better by Standard & Poor’s Corporation or Moody’s Bond Ratings, bankers
acceptancesissued by banksranked nationally asbeinginthetop 50in asset and deposit size, repurchaseandreverse
repurchase agreements and money market mutual fundswhose portfolio consists of authorized investments. The
City investsin STAROhi o, aninvestment pool managed by the State Treasurer's Officewhich allowsgovernments
within the state to pool their funds for investment purposes. STARONhio is not registered with the Securities
Exchange Commission as an investment company, but does operate in a manner similar to Rule 2a7 of the
Investment Company Act of 1940. Investmentsin STAROhio arevalued at STAROhio's share pricewhichisthe
pricetheinvestment could be sold for on December 31, 2000.



The City’ sinvestments are categorized to give an indication of thelevel of risk assumed by the entity at year end.
Category 1includesinvestmentsthat areinsured or registered or for which the securitiesare held by the City or its
agentinthe City’ sname. Category 2 includesuninsured and unregistered investmentsfor which the securitiesare
held by the counterparty’s trust department or agent in the City’s name. Category 3 includes uninsured and
unregisteredinvestmentsfor whichthesecuritiesareheld by thecounterparty, or by itstrust department or agent, but
notintheCity’ sname.

Category Carrying Amount
1 2 3 and Fair Value

Repurchase

Agreement $690,223 $690,223
Corporate

Bonds 10,469,588 10,469,588

$11,159,811 $11,159,811

Money Market

Mutual Funds 820,177
Pension Plan Pooled

Investment Fund 1,232,777
State Treasurer’s

I nvestment Pool 1,853,058
Tota Investments $15,065,823
INCOMETAXES

TheCity leviesal.75% incometax on substantialy all incomeearned withinthe City. Additional increasesinthe
income tax rate require voter approval. City residents pay City income tax on income earned outside the City,
however; acreditisallowed for incometaxespaidto other municipalities.

Employers within the City withhold income tax on employee compensation and remit at least quarterly.
Corporationsand other individual taxpayerspay estimated taxesquarterly andfilean annual declaration.

PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxesincludeamountslevied against al real, public utility and tangible (usedin business) property located
inthe City. Property taxesarelevied each December 31 on the assessed value listed as of the prior December 31.
Assessed values are established for real property at 35% of true value, for public utility property at 100% of true
value, and for tangible property at 25% of trueval ue (excluding thefirst $10,000 of value). Property market values
arerequiredto be updated every threeyearsand revalued every six years. A reva uationwascompletedin 1996.
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Theproperty tax calendar isasfollows:

Levy date December 31, 1999
Liendate December 31, 1999
Tax bill mailed January 20, 2000
Firstinstallment payment due February 15, 2000
Second instal|ment payment due July 15, 2000

Theassessed va uesfor the City at December 31, 1999, wereasfollows:

Assessed
Value

Category
Real Estate $985,879,090
Public Utility Real Property 157,630
Tangible Personal Property 79,345,524
Public Utility Personal Property 35,332,650
Total $1,100,714,894

The County Treasurer collects property taxes on behaf of dl taxing districtsincluding the City of Kettering. The
County periodically remitstothe City itsportion of taxescollected. Property taxesmay bepaid on either anannual
or semiannual basis.

5. OTHERTAXES
Thecaption“ Other taxes’” onthe Statement of Activitiesiscomprised of taxeslevied by the State or the County and
distributed to the City. The componentsof the number areasfollows:

Estatetaxes $4,139,508
Salestaxes 1,882,296
Gasolinetaxes 1,079,098
Vehiclelicensetaxes 798,423
Miscellaneousother taxes 285,620

184,945

LOANSRECEIVABLE

TheCity used aportion of theFederal Community Devel opment Block Grant (CDBG) to providelow interestloans
for housing rehabilitation, aswell asfor economic and job development. Theloansare payableininstallmentsto
2024. Fund balance has been reserved for the loans receivable at December 31, 2000, as it does not represent
currently available spendable resources. CDBG regulations require the City to reinvest loan repayments in
permissible CDBG loansor expenditures.



7. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for theyear ended December 31, 2000, wasasfollows:

Beginning Ending
Balance I ncreases Decr eases Balance
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $8,674,353** $655,575 $362,716 $8,967,212
Construction in progress 560,371 560,371
Subtotal 9,234,724 655,575 923,087 8,967,212
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 33,304,740 1,912,277 236,743 34,980,274
Machinery and equipment 13,233,575 2,080,468 969,658 14,344,385
Infrastructure 85,068,435 10,326,970 95,395,405
Subtotal 131,606,750 14,319,715 1,206,401 144,720,064
Accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and improvements (14,260,634) (1,752,021) 17,757 (15,994,898)
Machinery and equipment (9,148,029) (926,995) 841,144 (9,233,880)
Infrastructure (23,261,988) (2,869,883) (26,131,871)
Subtotal (46,670,651) (5,548,899)* 858,901 (51,360,649)
Net capital assets being depreciated 84,936,099 8,770,816 347,500 93,359,415
Net capital assets $94,170,823 $9,426,391 $1,270,587 $102,326,627

*Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions asfollows:

General government $439,672
Police 243511
Fire 286,221
Public works 2,927,415
Leisureservices 1,456,487
In addition, depreciation on capital assets held by the City’ sinternal servicefundsis

charged to the various functions based on their usage of the assets. 195,593
Total depreciation expense $5,548,899

** The beginning balance for Land was restated due to an asset that was misclassified in 1999 as a capital
asset. It should have been an asset held for resale.

8. RISK MANAGEMENT

TheCityisamember of apublicentity risk pool, Miami Valey Risk Management Association, Inc. (MVRMA)with
fifteen other local cities. Thispool coversall property, crime, liability, boiler and machinery and public officia
liability uptothelimitsstated below.

Insurancecoverageisasfollows:

Property — Blanket

Crime— $1,500,000 per occurrence

Liability — $11,000,000 per occurrence

Boiler & Machinery — Blanket

Public Official Liability — $1,000,000 per occurrence.
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The deductible per occurrencefor all typesis $2,500. Pool coverageis $2,501 - $5,000 for boiler and machinery,
$2,501 - $7,500 for crime, $2,501 - $150,000 for property, and $2,501 - $500,000 for liability. Excessinsurance
coverage, provided by commercia companies, istheamount in excess of pool coverageto thelimits stated above.
The City paysan annual premiumto MVRMA whichisintended to cover administrative expensesand any claims
covered by thepool. MVRMA hasthe ahility to require the member citiesto make supplemental paymentsinthe
event reserves are not adequate to cover claims. An actuarial opinion issued as of December 31, 1999, indicates
reservesin excessof anticipated claims.

Employee health insuranceis provided through afully insured plan and is accounted for and financed through an
internal servicefund. The City pays premiumsto aprivateinsurance company and retainsnorisk.

Workers compensationisadministered by the Stateof Ohio. TheCity paysapremium per employeetothe Statefor
thiscoverage.

Therewere no significant reductionsin insurance coverage from the prior year in any category of risk. Insurance
coveragefor each of the past three yearswas sufficient to cover any claims settlements.

PENSION PLAN OBLIGATIONS

ThePoliceand FirePension Fund, the Public EmployeesRetirement SystemandtheV olunteer FirefightersPension
arereported using GASB 27.

Substantially al City employeesarecovered by oneof two cost-sharing multi ple-empl oyer defined benefit pension
plans, namely, the Policeand Fire Pension Fund or the Public Empl oyeesRetirement System of Ohio (PERS). Both
funds provide retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments, and death benefits to plan
membersand beneficiaries.

POLICE AND FIRE PENSION FUND

Authority toestablishand amend benefitsisprovided by statestatute per Chapter 742 of theOhioRevised Code. The
Police and Fire Pension Fund issues a publicly available financia report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary informationfor thefund. I nterested partiesmay obtainacopy by making awrittenrequestto
140 East Town Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-5164, or by calling (614) 228-2975.

The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for employee and employer contributions. Plan membersare
requiredtocontribute 10%of their annual covered sal ary andthe City i srequired to contributetheremaining amount
necessary to pay benefitswhen due. For 2000, the City contributed 19.5% of annual covered salary for Policeand
24% for Fire. The City's contributionsto the plan for the years ending December 31, 1998, 1999, and 2000, were
$1,557,599, $1,617,247, and $1,655,769 respectively, equal to therequired contributionsfor theyear.

PUBLICEMPLOYEESRETIREMENT SYSTEM

Authority toestablishand amend benefitsisprovided by statestatute per Chapter 145 of theOhioRevised Code. The
Public EmployeesRetirement Systemissuesapublicly availablefinancial report that includesfinancia statements
and required supplementary information for the fund. Interested parties may obtain a copy by making a written
request to 277 East Town Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-4642, or by calling (614) 466-2085.

The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for employee and employer contributions. Plan membersare
required to contribute 8.5% of their annual covered salary and the City isrequired to contribute 13.55%. The City's
contributionsto the plan for the years ending December 31, 1998, 1999, and 2000, were $1,827,140, $1,933,700
and $1,628,503 respectively, equal totherequired contributionsfor theyear.

The Retirement Board enacted a temporary employer contribution rate rollback for calendar year 2000. The
decisiontorollback rateswas based on aDecember 31, 1998, actuarial study, which indicated that actuarial assets



exceeded actuarial lighilities. Thetemporary rate rollback was 20% making the City's contribution rate for 2000,
10.84%. Therate has gone back to 13.55% for 2001.

VOLUNTEER FIREFIGHTERSPENSION

Principal Mutual Life Insurance Company administers a single-employer, defined benefit pension plan for the
Volunteer Firefighters. AtJanuary 1, 2000, the Plan’ smembership consisted of thefollowing:

Retireesand beneficiariescurrently receiving benefits 60

Terminated employeesentitled to benefitsbut not yet

receivingthem 38
Activemembers 70
Totd 168

All regular members of the Volunteer Fire Department are dligible for the plan upon completion of 3 years of
continuous service. Members may retire at age 55 and receive a monthly benefit, payablefor life. The monthly
retirement benefitisequal tothesum of $8.00 multiplied by thenumber of yearsof credited servicenot in excessof
10yearsand $10.00 multiplied by thenumber of yearsof credited serviceinexcessof 10years. Benefitsvest at 15%
upon 3yearsof credited serviceplus5% for each additional year, upto 100%. Benefitsare established by and may
beamended by City Ordinance.

Financial Statements of the Volunteer Firefighters Pension are prepared using the accrua basis of accounting.
Employer contributionsare recognized when due and the employer hasmade aformal commitment to providethe
contributions. Benefitsand refundsare recognized when due and payabl ein accordancewith termsof theplan. The
pension plan doesnot issueastand-alonefinancial report

Plan investments are reported at fair value. No investment, in any one organization, exceeded five percent of net
assetsavailablefor benefits.

The City’ sfunding policy isto provide for periodic employer contributions at actuarialy determined rates that,
expressed in dollars, are designed to accumul ate sufficient assetsto pay benefitswhen due. Costsof administering
the plan are paid separately by the City and not deducted from plan assets. The City isto make al contributions
required to the plan. Activemembersare not required to contribute.

The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part of the January 1, 2000, actuaria
valuation using the aggregate actuarial cost method. Theactuarial assumptionsincluded a7.0% investment rate of
return and that benefits will not increase after retirement. The actuarial value of assets was determined using the
contract basis. The aggregate actuarial cost method does not identify or separately amortize unfunded actuarial

liabilities.
SCHEDULE OFEMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
Annual

Year Ended Required Actual Per cent

December 31 Contribution Contribution Contributed
1995 $0 $0 100%
1996 0 0 100%
1997 28,603 28,603 100%
1998 40,785 40,785 100%
1999 40,684 40,684 100%

2000 35,644 35,644 100%
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For the fiscal years ended December 31, 1998, 1999 and 2000, the Annual Pension cost (APC) was $40,785,
$40,684 and $35,644 respectively; the Percentageof APC contributedwas100%andthenet pensionobligationwas
$0.

Thefirst year the City hasreported the V olunteer Firefighters Pension under GASB 27 wasin 1996. The pension
lighility was$0 and wasdetermined in accordancewith GASB 27. Theamount of pensionliability at transitionwas
$0. Thedifference between theamount of pension liability and thepreviously reported liability to the plan was $0.

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFI TS (OPEB)

In additionto the pension benefitsdescribed in Note 8, both the Public Empl oyees Retirement System of Ohioand
the Police and Fire Pension Fund provide postretirement health care coverage, commonly referred to as OPEB
(other postemployment benefits). For both systems, the Ohio Revised Code provides the authority for public
employersto fund postretirement health carethrough their contributions.

POLICE AND FIRE PENSION FUND OPEB

Thefund providespostretirement heal th carecoverageto any personwhoreceivesor iseligibletoreceiveamonthly
benefit check orisaspouseor eligibl edependent child of such person. Andligibledependent childisany childunder
theageof 18 whether or not the childisattending school, or under theageof 22, if attending school full-timeor ona
2/3basis.

Health carefunding and accounting ison apay-as-you-go basis. The Ohio Revised Code providesthat health care
costspaid shall beincludedintheemployer’ scontributionrate. The 2000 employer contribution ratewas 19.5% of
covered payroll for Policeand 24%for Fireof which 7.25%wasused tofund hedlthcare. TheCity’ scontributionfor
theyear ended December 31, 2000, was$350,632for Policeand $215,389for Fireto pay postempl oyment benefits.

Thenumber of participantseligibletoreceive health carebenefitsasof December 31, 1999, were 12,467 for Police
and 9,807 for Fire. TheFund’ stotd health careexpensesfor theyear ended December 31, 1999, were $95,004,633.

PUBLICEMPLOYEESRETIREMENT SYSTEM OPEB

ThePublic EmployeesRetirement System of Ohio providespost-retirement health carecoveragetoageand service
retirantswith 10 or moreyearsof qualifying Ohio servicecredit. Health care coveragefor disability recipientsand
primary survivor recipientsisavailable.

The 2000 employer contribution rate was 10.84%, of which 4.3% was used to fund hedth care. The City’s
contribution for theyear ended December 31, 2000, was $646,027 to fund post-empl oyment benefits.

OPEB are advanced-funded on an actuarialy determined basis. An entry age normal actuarial cost method of
valuationisused in determining the present value of OPEB. Thedifferent between assumed and actua experience
becomes part of unfunded actuaria accrued liability. All investments are carried at market value. For actuarial
valuation purposes, assets are adjusted annually to reflect 25% of unrealized market appreciation or depreciation.
The investment assumption rate for 1999 was 7.75%. Individua base pay was assumed to increase 4.75%
compoundedannually with no changeinthenumber of activeempl oyees. Health carecostswereassumedtoincrease
4.75%annualy.

The number of active contributing participantswas 401,339 as of December 31, 1999, the date the latest actuaria
review was performed. The Funds actuarially determined accrued liability for OPEB's at December 31, 1999, are
$12,473.6 millionwith net assetsavail ablefor OPEB of $10,805.5million, leavinganunfunded actuarial liability of
$1,668.1 million.
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11. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Long-termliability activity for theyear ended December 31, 2000, wasasfollows:
Amounts

Beginning Ending DueWithin
Balance Additions Reductions Balance OneYear

General obligation bonds:

Firestation, 9.00% $275,000 $45,000 $230,000 $45,000
Servicecenter, 9.00% 330,000 55,000 275,000 55,000
Improvement bonds-

Series 1991, 4.5%-6.65% 407,308 23,024 384,284 24,140
Improvement bonds-

Series 1992, 3.25%-6.45% 777,117 38,585 738,532 38,236
Improvement Refunding, 2.65%-5.25% 3,930,000 485,000 3,445,000 510,000
Recreation Center Refunding,

2.65%-16.9% 4,699,352 775,000 3,924,352 810,000
Total general obligation bonds 10,418,777 1,421,609 8,997,168 1,482,376

Special assessment bonds:
1983 David Road | mprovement,

9.75% 68,000 17,000 51,000 17,000
Improvement bonds-

Series1991, 4.5%-6.65% 1,282,691 66,975 1,215,716 70,860
Improvement bonds-

Series1992, 3.7%-5.9% 27,883 6,415 21,468 6,764
Total special assessment bonds 1,378,574 90,390 1,288,184 94,624

Other:

Accruedvacationand

sick leavebenefits 2,479,879 $102,316 2,582,195 1,678,427
Ohio PublicWorksCommission

Long-Term Promissory Notes, 0% 757,129 71,135 685,994 71,134
Total other 3,237,008 102,316 71,135 3,268,189 1,749,561
Total long-termliabilities $15,034,359 $102,316 $1,583,134 $13,553,541 $3,326,561

The accrued vacation and sick |eave benefitsliability will beliquidated by several of the City'sgovernmental and
internal service funds. In the past, approximately 73% has been paid by the General Fund, 10% by the Street
Maintenance Fund and the remainder by the other governmental and internal service funds. The City uses the
“vesting method” to determinetheappropriateliability.

Inthe event of delinquenciesrelated to special assessment bonds, the City isrequired to use other resources until
forecl osureproceedsarereceivedtosatisfy debt service. TheCity doesnot haveasinkingfund or reserveestablished
to cover defaultsby property ownersbecauseforecl osure proceedswoul d €liminate any outstanding liability.
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Theannual requirementsto pay principal andinterest onlong-termobligationsat December 31, 2000, areasfollows:

General Obligation Promissory Special Assessment
Bonds Notes Bonds

Principal Interest Principal _Interest Principal _Interest
2001 $1,482,376 $462,983 $71,134 $0 $94,624 $84,948
2002 1,547,816 387,057 71,134 0 99,184 78,730
2003 1,617,858 306,420 71,134 0 104,142 72,115
2004 1,705,564 220,866 71,134 0 84,436 65,157
2005 940,019 980,279 71,134 0 89,671 59,922
2006-2016 1,703,535 2,904,069 330,324 0 816,127 231,018
Total $8,997,168  $5,261,674 $685,994 $0 $1,288,184 $591,890

The Ohio Revised Code (ORC) providesthat thetotal net debt (asdefined in the ORC) of amunicipal corporation,
whether or not approved by the electors, shall not exceed 10.5% of thetotal value of al property inthe municipal
corporation aslisted and assessed for taxation. In addition, the unvoted net debt of municipal corporations cannot
exceed 5.5% of thetotal taxationva ueof property. At December 31, 2000, the City had alegal debt marginfor total
debt of $106,695,428 and alegal debt margin for unvoted debt of $55,584,035.

LEASESAND CONSTRUCTION COMMITMENTS

Thereareno operating leases, inwhichthe City isalessee, inexcessof oneyear. Operatinglease paymentsin 2000
were $144,789.

Construction and other commitmentsat December 31, 2000, were approximately $2,150,000.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

TheCity isthedefendantinvari ouslawsuitsand subject tovariousclaimsover whi chlitigation hasnot commenced.
Although the outcome of these matters is not presently determinable, in the opinion of the Law Director the
resol ution of these matterswill not haveamaterial adverseeffect onthefinancia condition of the City.

TheCity participatesin several federally assi sted programswhich are subject to program compliance auditsby the
grantorsor their representatives. A singlefinancia and compliance audit of the City has been compl eted with no
findingsfor recovery. Thegrantor agencies, at their option, may perform economy and efficiency audits, program
results audits or conduct monitoring visits. Such audits and visits could lead to reimbursement to the grantor
agencies. Management believessuch reimbursements, if any, would beimmaterial.



14. PRIORYEARRESTATEMENTS

InMarch 2000, the GA SB i ssued | nterpretation #6. Thisinterpretation clarified theaccountingfor certainliabilities
including compensated absences. As a result of this interpretation, the City has removed the portion of the
compensated absencesliability previousdly residing inthegovernmental funds.

Additionally, in 1999, theCity purchased and demolished an ol d strip mal | withtheintent toresell theland. Thisasset
wasrecorded asaCapital asset rather thanan Asset held for resale.

Finaly, whenthe City adopted GA SB 33" Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions," it
failed to accrue intergovernmental revenue/other taxes distributed by the State of Ohio aswell asthe portion of
incometaxesreceivablebut not "available."

Theimpact of theserestatementsareasfollows:

Other Special
Parks, Revenue
Statement Street Recreation & Fraze  Governmental
of Activities  General Maintenance Cultural Arts Pavilion Funds

Fund Balance/

Net Assetsat the

Beginningof

theYear $115,791,364 $26,045,352 $281,305 $55,686 $76,193 $1,527,746

Restatement
for GASB
Interpretation #6 126,749 19,198 14,307 299

Restatement for
Asset
Reclassification 1,552,323

Restatement for
Income Taxes
& Other Taxes 3,751,483 37,500 113,800 9,300

Fund Baance/

Net Assetsat the

Beginningof

theYear,

asRestated $119,542,847 $27,761,924 $414,303 $69,993 $76,492 $1,537,046

15. DEFICIT FUND BALANCE

The DESC Reuse specia revenue fund had adeficit fund balance of $28,492 on December 31, 2000. Thisfund
receivesfederal grant monieson areimbursement basis. The 2001 grant revenuewill eliminatethedeficit.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

BUDGET(GAAP BUDGET) TO ACTUAL COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

2000
Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget
Fund balance, January 1, as restated $27,761,924 $27,761,924 $27,761,924
Resources (inflows)
Income taxes 22,668,000 23,071,000 23,566,678 $495,678
Property taxes 5,885,000 6,230,000 6,206,693 (23,307)
Licenses and permits 440,000 440,000 457,172 17,172
Intergovernmental revenue 1,957,000 1,957,000 2,046,994 89,994
Charges for services 46,000 8,000 18,011 10,011
Fines and forfeits 1,045,000 1,011,000 1,043,089 32,089
Investment earnings 1,800,000 1,900,000 2,507,862 607,862
Special assessments 300,000 326,000 330,527 4,527
Refunds and reimbursements 600,000 600,000 921,299 321,299
Miscellaneous 90,000 112,000 122,876 10,876
Transfer from other funds
Amounts available for appropriation 62,592,924 63,416,924 64,983,125 1,566,201
Charges to appropriations (outflows)
General government:
Mayor and Council:
Personal services 186,500 186,500 177,926 8,574
Operating expenditures 77,319 77,309 63,188 14,121
Capital outlay
Total mayor and council 263,819 263,809 241,114 22,695
Municipal court:
Personal services 572,000 572,000 570,650 1,350
Operating expenditures 355,409 350,631 217,708 132,923
Capital outlay
Total municipal court 927,409 922,631 788,358 134,273
Clerk of courts:
Personal services 534,300 534,300 508,613 25,687
Operating expenditures 111,320 111,257 76,719 34,538
Capital outlay 5,000 5,000 5,000
Total clerk of courts 650,620 650,557 585,332 65,225
Office of City Manager:
Personal services 416,900 419,900 415,315 4,585
Operating expenditures 63,293 63,253 62,168 1,085
Capital outlay
Total office of city manager 480,193 483,153 477,483 5,670
Law department:
Personal services 514,800 484,800 473,273 11,527
Operating expenditures 153,568 183,544 159,886 23,658
Capital outlay
Total law department 668,368 668,344 633,159 35,185
Finance department:
Personal services 1,078,400 1,075,400 1,015,139 60,261
Operating expenditures 465,668 468,573 426,364 42,209
Capital outlay
Total finance department 1,544,068 1,543,973 1,441,503 102,470
Administrative support:
Personal services 345,800 345,800 332,831 12,969
Operating expenditures 77,329 77,260 66,495 10,765
Capital outlay
Total administrative support 423,129 423,060 399,326 23,734

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

BUDGET(GAAP BUDGET) TO ACTUAL COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

2000
Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget
General government:
Human resources department:
Personal services $480,600 $480,600 $464,631 $15,969
Operating expenditures 285,877 272,397 201,659 70,738
Capital outlay
Total human resources department 766,477 752,997 666,290 86,707
Planning and development:
Personal services 1,394,100 1,394,100 1,255,718 138,382
Operating expenditures 411,564 405,541 290,028 115,513
Capital outlay
Total planning and development 1,805,664 1,799,641 1,545,746 253,895
Economic development:
Personal services 90,800 94,800 94,643 157
Operating expenditures 659,477 690,063 633,942 56,121
Capital outlay
Total economic development 750,277 784,863 728,585 56,278
Miscellaneous:
Operating expenditures 646,360 802,337 606,779 195,558
Total miscellaneous 646,360 802,337 606,779 195,558
Total general government 8,926,384 9,095,365 8,113,675 981,690
Police:
Personal services 6,850,200 6,850,200 6,701,303 148,897
Operating expenditures 1,410,162 1,409,436 1,389,687 19,749
Capital outlay 367,178 359,948 255,207 104,741
Total police 8,627,540 8,619,584 8,346,197 273,387
Fire:
Personal services 4,819,300 4,819,300 4,516,351 302,949
Operating expenditures 2,355,773 2,338,116 1,496,384 841,732
Capital outlay 1,614,279 1,614,279 1,112,805 501,474
Total fire 8,789,352 8,771,695 7,125,540 1,646,155
Public works:
Transportation department:
Personal services 633,100 633,100 631,114 1,986
Operating expenditures 304,273 324,212 283,242 40,970
Capital outlay
Total transportation department 937,373 957,312 914,356 42,956
Engineering department:
Personal services 997,700 997,700 857,803 139,897
Operating expenditures 309,274 309,204 193,497 115,707
Capital outlay 55,200 55,200 31,902 23,298
Total engineering department 1,362,174 1,362,104 1,083,202 278,902
Street lighting:
Operating expenditures 619,982 615,420 530,053 85,367
Total street lighting 619,982 615,420 530,053 85,367
Total public works 2,919,529 2,934,836 2,527,611 407,225
Transfers to other funds 15,997,000 16,782,506 9,543,432 7,239,074
Total charges to appropriations 45,259,805 46,203,986 35,656,455 10,547,531
Fund balance, December 31 $17,333,119 $17,212,938 $29,326,670 $12,113,732

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

BUDGET(GAAP BUDGET) TO ACTUAL COMPARISON SCHEDULE - STREET MAINTENANCE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

2000
Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget
Fund balance, January 1, as restated $414,303 $414,303 $414,303
Resources (inflows)
Licenses and permits 2,660 $2,660
Intergovernmental revenue 1,725,000 1,725,000 1,766,238 41,238
Refunds and reimbursements 200,000 150,000 220,370 70,370
Miscellaneous 5,000 10,383 5,383
Transfer from the general fund 2,200,000 2,410,000 2,110,000 (300,000)
Amounts available for appropriation 4,539,303 4,704,303 4,523,954 (180,349)
Charges to appropriations (outflows)
Public works:
Street department:
Personal services 2,809,400 2,759,400 2,693,292 66,108
Operating expenditures 1,142,009 1,301,925 1,261,745 40,180
Capital outlay 444,159 444,159 407,933 36,226
Total charges to appropriations 4,395,568 4,505,484 4,362,970 142,514
Fund balance, December 31 $143,735 $198,819 $160,984 ($37,835)

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information.



CITY OF KETTERING, OHIO

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

BUDGET(GAAP BUDGET) TO ACTUAL COMPARISON SCHEDULE -

PARKS, RECREATION AND CULTURAL ARTS FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with

Original Final Actual Final Budget
Fund balance, January 1, as restated $69,993 $69,993 $69,993
Resources (inflows)
Intergovernmental revenue 25,000 25,000 25,159 $159
Charges for services 2,476,000 2,474,000 2,429,660 (44,340)
Refunds and reimbursements 40,000 45,000 64,836 19,836
Miscellaneous 32,000 6,000 8,964 2,964
Transfer from the general fund 4,500,000 4,500,000 4,317,000 (183,000)
Amounts available for appropriation 7,142,993 7,119,993 6,915,612 (204,381)
Charges to appropriations (outflows)
Leisure services:
Parks, recreation and cultural arts department:
Personal services 3,957,000 3,957,000 3,752,613 204,387
Operating expenditures 3,207,451 3,206,395 3,020,876 185,519
Capital outlay 73,000 73,000 70,290 2,710
Total charges to appropriations 7,237,451 7,236,395 6,843,779 392,616
Fund balance, December 31 ($94,458) ($116,402) $71,833 $188,235

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information.
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35 CITY OF KETTERING, OHIO

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

BUDGET(GAAP BUDGET) TO ACTUAL COMPARISON SCHEDULE - FRAZE PAVILION FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

2000
Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget
Fund balance, January 1, as restated $76,492 $76,492 $76,492
Resources (inflows)
Charges for services 1,560,000 1,464,000 1,478,137 $14,137
Refunds and reimbursements 30,000 49,000 958 (48,042)
Miscellaneous 245,000 126,000 189,700 63,700
Transfer from the general fund 450,000 450,000 275,000 (175,000)
Amounts available for appropriation 2,361,492 2,165,492 2,020,287 (145,205)
Charges to appropriations (outflows)
Leisure services:
Fraze pavilion:
Personal services 439,200 439,200 416,495 22,705
Operating expenditures 1,820,314 1,816,732 1,504,668 312,064
Capital outlay
Total charges to appropriations 2,259,514 2,255,932 1,921,163 334,769
Fund balance, December 31 $101,978 ($90,440) $99,124 $189,564

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information.



CITY OF KETTERING, OHIO
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGET(GAAP BUDGET) TO ACTUAL COMPARISON SCHEDULE -
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget
Fund balance, January 1 $2,285,033 $2,285,033 $2,285,033
Resources (inflows)
Intergovernmental revenue 508,000 468,000 664,738 $196,738
Refunds and reimbursements 120 120
Miscellaneous 71,000 71,000 64,464 (6,536)
Sale of city assets 300,000 300,000 326,929 26,929
Amounts available for appropriation 3,164,033 3,124,033 3,341,284 217,251
Charges to appropriations (outflows)
General government 779,630 823,412 809,527 13,885
Capital improvements 771,951 666,019 363,062 302,957
Total charges to appropriations 1,551,581 1,489,431 1,172,589 316,842
Fund balance, December 31 $1,612,452 $1,634,602 $2,168,695 $534,093

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information.
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NOTESTO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FORTHE YEAR ENDED DECEM BER 31, 2000

1

BUDGETSAND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

An annual budget for all governmental fund types covering the period January 1 through December 31 of the
following year showing estimated revenuesand expendituresissubmitted to the County Auditor as Secretary of the
County Budget Commission. Thebudget ispassed by City Council, after publichearingsareheld, by July 15of each
year, and submitted to the County Budget Commission by July 20 of each year.

TheCounty Budget Commissioncertifiesitsactionsrel ativetotheannual budget tothe City by September 1. Aspart
of thiscertification, theCity receivesan official certificateof estimated resourceswhich statestheprojectedreceipts
by fund. On or about January 1, this certificate is amended to include any unencumbered fund balances from the
preceding year. Prior to December 31, the City must reviseitsbudget so that the total contemplated expenditures
from any fund during the ensuing fiscal year will not exceed the amount stated in the certificate of estimated
resources. Therevised budget then servesasthebasisfor the annual appropriationsordinance.

A temporary appropriationsordinanceto control expendituresmay be passed on or about January 1 of eachyear for
theperiod January 1throughMarch 31. Anannual appropriationsordinance must bepassed by April 1 of eachyear
for the period January 1to December 31. Theappropriationsordinancegenerally controlsexpendituresat thelevel
of personal services, operating expenditures and capital improvements on adepartment level, except for the state
highway fund, cemetery fund, policepensionfund, DESC (Defense El ectronics Supply Center) reusefund, special
safety grantsand programsfund, community devel opment fund andthecapital projectsfundwhicharecontrolled at
thefundlevel. The City Manager hasthe authority to amend appropriationswithin the department at thelevel s of
personal service, operating expendituresand capital improvements, amendments abovethisleve require council
approval. Theordinancemay beamended or supplemented by Council duringtheyear asrequired. Amendmentsto
theappropriationsordinancemadeduringtheyear werenot material inrelationtotheorigina appropriations. Total
expendituresinany fund do not exceedtheestimated resourcesfor that fund. Unencumbered appropriationslapseat
year-end, whileencumbered amountsarereappropriatedinthefollowing year’ sbudget. Revenuesareestimated by
theFinanceDirector inconjunctionwiththeannual budgeting process. However, theseestimatesarenotincluded or
required inthe budget ordinance.

The City, being ahome rule municipal corporation, has adopted, through ordinance, GAAP (generally accepted
accounting principles) asitsbudgetary basis.

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitmentsfor the expenditure of
moniesarerecorded in order to reservethat portion of the applicabl e appropriation, isemployed asan extension of
formal budgetary control in the governmental funds. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reported as
reservationsof fund balancefor subsequent year expenditures.



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF
INDIVIDUAL FUNDS

PRINTED ON % 8 RECYCLEDPAPER




This Page is Intentionally Left Blank.



39 CITY OF KETTERING, OHIO

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET DECEMBER 31, 2000

Special Total
State Police DESC Safety Grants  Governmental
Highway Cemetery Pension Reuse & Programs Funds
ASSETS
Pooled cash and investments $44,945 $224,892 $289,464 $67,195 $638,335 $1,264,831
Receivables:
Property taxes 309,365 309,365
Accounts 46 46
Due from other governments 60,346 64,544 62,743 187,633
Prepaid expenditures 464 464
Total assets $105,291 $224,892 $598,829 $132,203 $701,124 $1,762,339
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $49,013 $200 $34,039 $178,126 $261,378
Accrued payroll $279,342 279,342
Deferred revenue 46,500 309,365 126,656 81,863 564,384
Total liabilities 95,513 200 588,707 160,695 259,989 1,105,104
FUND BALANCES
Reserved for:
Encumbrances 840,535 25,081 239,691 1,105,307
Prepaid expenditures 464 464
Unreserved (830,757) $224,692 10,122 (54,037) 201,444 (448,536)
Total fund balances 9,778 224,692 10,122 (28,492) 441,135 657,235
Total liabilities and fund balances $105,291 $224,892 $598,829 $132,203 $701,124 $1,762,339




CITY OF KETTERING, OHIO 40
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (GAAP BUDGET)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
State Highway Cemetery
Final Budget Actual Variance Final Budget Actual Variance
REVENUES
Property taxes
Intergovernmental revenue $1,707,000 $789,933 ($917,067)
Charges for services $9,500 $14,216 $4,716
Fines and forfeits
Investment earnings 20,000 13,699 (6,301) 10,000 16,489 6,489
Refunds and reimbursements 133,000 5,982 (127,018)
Miscellaneous 500 (500)
Total revenues 1,860,000 809,614 (1,050,386) 20,000 30,705 10,705
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 10,800 8,814 1,986
Police
Fire
Public works 112,000 99,113 12,887
Leisure services
Capital improvements 2,355,031 1,348,895 1,006,136
Total expenditures 2,467,031 1,448,008 1,019,023 10,800 8,814 1,986
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures (607,031) (638,394) (31,363) 9,200 21,891 12,691
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 200,000 200,000
Transfers out
Net change in fund balance (407,031) (438,394) (31,363) 9,200 21,891 12,691
Fund balances--beginning, as restated 448,172 448,172 202,801 202,801
Fund balances--ending $41,141 $9,778 ($31,363) $212,001 $224,692 $12,691



41 CITY OF KETTERING, OHIO

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (GAAP BUDGET) - CONTINUED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

Police Pension DESC Reuse
Final Budget Actual Variance Final Budget Actual Variance
REVENUES
Property taxes $314,000 $326,659 $12,659
Intergovernmental revenue $135,000 $17,947 ($117,053)
Charges for services 60,000 61,505 1,505
Fines and forfeits
Investment earnings
Refunds and reimbursements 13,000 8,678 (4,322)
Miscellaneous
Total revenues 314,000 326,659 12,659 208,000 88,130 (119,870)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 423,341 361,744 61,597
Police 965,000 939,525 25,475
Fire
Public works
Leisure services
Capital improvements 330,000 129,089 200,911
Total expenditures 965,000 939,525 25,475 753,341 490,833 262,508
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures (651,000) (612,866) 38,134 (545,341) (402,703) 142,638
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 675,000 609,126 (65,874) 441,000 264,544 (176,456)
Transfers out
Net change in fund balance 24,000 (3,740) (27,740) (104,341) (138,159) (33,818)
Fund balances--beginning, as restated 13,862 13,862 109,667 109,667

Fund balances--ending $37,862 $10,122 ($27,740) $5,326 (328,492) (333,818)



CITY OF KETTERING, OHIO 42
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (GAAP BUDGET) - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
Special Safety Grants & Programs Total 2000
Final Budget Actual Variance Final Budget Actual Variance
REVENUES
Property taxes $314,000 $326,659 $12,659
Intergovernmental revenue $1,449,711 $239,982 ($1,209,729) 3,291,711 1,047,862 (2,243,849)
Charges for services 69,500 75,721 6,221
Fines and forfeits 96,000 92,315 (3,685) 96,000 92,315 (3,685)
Investment earnings 14,000 20,022 6,022 44,000 50,210 6,210
Refunds and reimbursements 146,000 14,660 (131,340)
Miscellaneous 55,000 57,618 2,618 55,500 57,618 2,118
Total revenues 1,614,711 409,937 (1,204,774) 4,016,711 1,665,045 (2,351,666)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 480,699 205,042 275,657 914,840 575,600 339,240
Police 176,532 67,509 109,023 1,141,532 1,007,034 134,498
Fire 7,000 7,000 7,000 7,000
Public works 65,598 64,261 1,337 177,598 163,374 14,224
Leisure services 9,675 (9,675) 9,675 (9,675)
Capital improvements 2,507,492 1,452,621 1,054,871 5,192,523 2,930,605 2,261,918
Total expenditures 3,237,321 1,799,108 1,438,213 7,433,493 4,686,288 2,747,205
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures (1,622,610)  (1,389,171) 233,439 (3,416,782)  (3,021,243) 395,539
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 1,306,506 1,067,762 (238,744) 2,622,506 2,141,432 (481,074)
Transfers out
Net change in fund balance (316,104) (321,409) (5,305) (794,276) (879,811) (85,535)
Fund balances--beginning, as restated 762,544 762,544 1,537,046 1,537,046
Fund balances--ending $446,440 $441,135 ($5,305) $742,770 $657,235 ($85,535)
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DEBT SERVICE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (GAAP BUDGET)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

2000
Final Budget Actual
REVENUES
Property taxes $1,181,000 $1,206,793
Investment earnings 50,000 87,920
Special assessments 181,000 181,230
Total revenues 1,412,000 1,475,943
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 5,000 2,915
Debt service:
Principal 1,620,633 1,583,134
Interest 625,480 625,480
Total expenditures 2,251,113 2,211,529
Deficiency of revenues over expenditures (839,113) (735,586)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 800,000 700,000
Net change in fund balance (39,113) (35,586)
Fund balances--beginning 153,118 153,118

Fund balances--ending $114,005 $117,532

Variance
$25,793
37,920

230
63,943

2,085

37,499

39,584
103,527

(100,000)
3,527

$3,527
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (GAAP BUDGET)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

2000
Final Budget Actual Variance
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $4,274,000 $4,484,721 ($210,721)
Special assessments 891,000 906,695 (15,695)
Refunds and reimbursements 369,000 278,178 90,822
Miscellaneous 75,000 68,136 6,864
Total revenues 5,609,000 5,737,730 (128,730)
EXPENDITURES
Capital improvements 11,939,954 6,694,815 5,245,139
Total expenditures 11,939,954 6,694,815 5,245,139
Deficiency of revenues over expenditures (6,330,954) (957,085) 5,373,869
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 6,000,000 (6,000,000)
Net change in fund balance (330,954) (957,085) (626,131)
Fund balances--beginning 3,296,479 3,296,479
Fund balances--ending $2,965,525 $2,339,394 ($626,131)
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

DETAILED SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET (GAAP BUDGET)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

Capital improvements:
Traffic controls
Street construction
Drainage
Parks and recreation
Tree planting and landscaping
Other

2000

Final Budget Actual
$351,657 $118,032
7,992,653 5,238,652
219,049 8,100
723,857 358,099
81,000 76,122
2,571,738 895,810
$11,939,954 $6,694,815

Total capital projects fund

Variance

$233,625
2,754,001
210,949
365,758
4,878
1,675,928

5285139
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2000

ASSETS
Current assets:
Pooled cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Due from other governments
Prepaid expenses
Inventory
Total current assets
Noncurrent assets:
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Less: Accumulated depreciation
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Accrued vacation and sick leave benefits
Total liabilities
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets
Unrestricted
Total net assets
Total liabilities and net assets

Administrative
Operations

$391,696
9,125
17,683
4,153
259,498
682,155

809,359
1,790,330

(1,864,097)

735,592

$1,417,747

$107,319
87,706
195,025

166,474
361,499

735,592
320,656

1,056,248
$1,417,747

Health
Insurance

$191,583
164

191,747

$191,747

$190

190

190

191,557
191,557

$191,747

Totals
2000

$583,279
9,289
17,683
4,153
259,498
873,902

809,359
1,790,330

(1,864,097)

735,592

$1,609,494

$107,509
87,706
195,215

166,474
361,689

735,592
512,213

1,247,805
$1,609,494
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

Administrative

Operations

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services $4,225,658
Total operating revenues 4,225,658

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personal services 2,100,796
Repairs and maintenance 878,658
Contractual services 523,452
Other materials and expenses 500,911
Depreciation 195,593
Total operating expenses 4,199,410
Operating income (loss) 26,248

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Investment earnings 48,882
Change in net assets 75,130
Total net assets--beginning 981,118

Total net assets--ending $1,056,248

Health
Insurance

$1,535,243

1,535,243

1,839,683

1,839,683
(304,440)

34,755

(269,685)

461,242

$191,557

Totals
2000

$5,760,901

5,760,901

2,100,796
878,658
2,363,135
500,911
195,593

6,039,093
(278,192)

83,637

(194,555)

1,442,360

__SL247505_
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48

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

Increase (Decrease) in cash

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received for services
Cash paid to suppliers for goods or services
Cash paid to employees for services

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of capital assets
Sale of capital assets

Net cash used by capital and related financing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment earnings

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash

Cash at beginning of year
Cash at end of year

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET
CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
(Increase) decrease in receivables
(Increase) decrease in inventories
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Net (increase) decrease in other operating net assets
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Administrative Health
Operations Insurance
$4,199,434 $1,535,079
(1,931,000) (1,839,493)
(2,169,961)
98,473 (304,414)
(115,794)
11,970
(103,824)
48,882 34,755
48,882 34,755
43,531 (269,659)
348,165 461,242
$391,696 $191,583
$26,248 ($304,440)
195,593
(26,156) (164)
3,637
(34,840) 190
(65,909)
$98,473 ($304,414)

Totals
2000

$5,734,513
(3,770,493)
(2,169,961)

(205,941)

(115,794)
11,970

(103,824)

83,637
83,637

(226,128)

809,407

$583,279

($278,192)

195,593
(26,320)
3,537
(34,650)
(65,909)

($205,941)
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AGENCY FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

PAYROLL WITHHOLDING FUND
ASSETS - Cash

LIABILITIES - Withholdings payable

MUNICIPAL COURT FUND
ASSETS - Investments with fiscal agent
LIABILITIES - Undistributed moneys

UNCLAIMED MONEY AND OTHER MISCELLANEOUS FUND

ASSETS - Cash
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Unclaimed moneys
Total liabilities

TOTALS - ALL AGENCY FUNDS

ASSETS

Cash

Investments with fiscal agent
Total assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Withholdings payable

Undistributed moneys

Unclaimed moneys
Total liabilities

$537,700

Balance Balance

December 31 December 31

1999 Additions Deductions 2000
$178,685 $8,137,098 $7,760,884 $554,899
$178,685 $8,137,098 $7,760,884 $554,899
$349,214 $3,137,387 $3,204,597 $282,004
$349,214 $3,137,387 $3,204,597 $282,004
$9,801 $205,639 $150,335 $65,105
$3,431 $200,348 $143,545 $60,234
6,370 5,291 6,790 4,871
$9,801 $205,639 $150,335 $65,105
$188,486 $8,342,737 $7,911,219 $620,004
349,214 3,137,387 3,204,597 282,004
$537,700 $11,480,124 $11,115,816 $902,008
$3,431 $200,348 $143,545 $60,234
178,685 8,137,098 7,760,884 554,899
349,214 3,137,387 3,204,597 282,004
6,370 5,291 6,790 4,871

$11,480,124 $11,115,816

$902,008
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DEBT SCHEDULE
DECEMBER 31, 2000

Schedule of Bonds and Notes

Date Interest Maturity Amount Amount Payments Due in 2001
PURPOSE Issued Rate Date Issued Outstanding Principal Interest
General Obligation Bonds:
Fire station 9/1/1985 9.00% 12/1/2005 $855,000 $230,000 $45,000 $20,700
Service center 9/1/1985 9.00 12/1/2005 1,050,000 275,000 55,000 24,750
Improvement bonds-series 1991 12/1/1991  4.5-6.65 12/1/2012 524,921 384,284 24,140 24,863
Improvement bonds-series 1992 11/1/1992  3.25-6.45 12/1/2012 994,303 738,532 38,236 46,380
Improvement refunding 8/1/1993  2.65-5.25 12/1/2006 6,845,000 3,445,000 510,000 173,540
Recreation center refunding 8/1/1993  2.65-16.9 12/1/2008 9,289,352 3,924,352 810,000 172,750
Total general obligation bonds 8,997,168 1,482,376 462,983
Special Assessment Bonds:
David road project 9/1/1983 9.75 12/1/2003 340,000 51,000 17,000 4,973
Improvement bonds-series 1991 12/1/1991  4.5-6.65 12/1/2012 1,665,079 1,215,716 70,860 78,732
Improvement bonds-series 1992 11/1/1992  3.7-5.90 12/1/2003 60,697 21,468 6,764 1,243
Total special assessment bonds 1,288,184 94,624 84,948
Promissory Notes:
Ohio public works commission:
Bridge replacements 12/1/1994 0.00 7/1/2015 280,393 205,545 14,020 0
Rushland drive improvement 7/1/1996 0.00 7/1/2016 122,577 98,062 6,129 0
Dorothy lane resurfacing 1/1/1998 0.00 1/1/2008 509,850 382,387 50,985 0
Total promissory notes 685,994 71,134 0
Total $10,971,346  $1,648,134 $547,931
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STATISTICAL SECTION

STATISTICAL TABLES

Thefollowing unaudited statistical tablesreflect social and economic data, financia
trendsand fiscal capacity of the City.
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TABLE 1
GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION LAST TEN YEARS
General
Year Government Police Fire Public Works Total
1991 $5,047,580 $6,184,434 $3,868,633 $2,364,353 $17,465,000
1992 5,389,103 6,546,244 4,187,416 2,372,035 18,494,798
1993 5,513,493 6,690,210 4,718,823 2,360,820 19,283,346
1994 5,825,863 6,726,297 4,452,656 2,457,186 19,462,002
1995 6,021,347 7,025,655 4,515,232 2,351,286 19,913,520
1996 6,397,684 6,846,440 4,849,644 2,426,320 20,520,088
1997 6,837,321 7,389,255 5,952,310 2,476,005 22,654,891
1998 7,032,117 8,144,972 5,796,677 2,564,389 23,538,155
1999 8,111,801 8,282,945 6,094,966 2,449,749 24,939,461
2000 8,113,675 8,346,197 7,125,540 2,527,611 26,113,023
Source: City of Kettering, Ohio, Finance Department
General Fund Expenditures General Fund Revenues
$40 +
$30 +
S $20 +
s
$10 +
$0 -
91 92 93 94 95 96 97 98 99 00
Year
TABLE 2
GENERAL FUND REVENUES BY SOURCE LAST TEN YEARS
Licenses Intergovernmental Charges Fines and
Year Taxes(1) and Permits Revenue for Services Forfeits Miscellaneous(2) Total
1991 $22,065,417 $250,323 $1,392,537 $10,442 $580,075 $1,924,354 $26,223,148
1992 23,037,668 264,301 1,405,136 8,006 507,478 1,786,244 27,008,833
1993 23,708,029 288,795 1,529,688 8,369 658,983 1,753,307 27,947,171
1994 24,707,151 309,874 1,635,308 9,526 672,562 2,174,181 29,508,602
1995 25,873,657 317,865 1,688,634 6,419 812,396 2,660,042 31,359,013
1996 26,167,848 366,175 1,722,082 4,207 964,953 2,841,089 32,066,354
1997 26,418,288 479,108 1,776,530 4,661 1,002,608 3,220,117 32,901,312
1998 27,956,308 422,204 1,933,745 6,601 1,198,264 4,199,220 35,716,342
1999 28,369,507 395,804 1,938,355 7,325 985,659 3,044,378 34,741,028
2000 29,773,371 457,172 2,046,994 18,011 1,043,089 3,882,564 37,221,201

Source: City of Kettering, Ohio, Finance Department

(1) Includes property taxes and income taxes
(2) Includes investment earnings, special assessments and refunds and reimbursements
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TABLE 3
INCOME TAX REVENUES LAST TEN YEARS
Year Amount
1991 $17,291,839
1992 18,129,495
1993 18,787,082
1994 19,610,464
1995 20,612,658
1996 20,988,312
1997 20,670,634
1998 22,251,839
1999 22,512,947
2000 23,566,678
Source: City of Kettering, Ohio, Finance Department
Income Tax Revenues Property Tax Levies
$25 + $8
$20 - $6 -
2 $15 4 @
2 S$4 +
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Year Collection Year
TABLE 4
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS LAST TEN YEARS
Percent of Percent of
Current Percent Delinquent Total Tax ~ Outstanding  Delinquent
Tax Collection Current Tax of Levy Tax Total Tax Collections Delinquent Taxes to
Year Year Tax Levy Collections Collected Collections  Collections to Tax Levy Taxes Tax Levy
1990 1991 $6,520,584  $6,192,375 95.0% $110,760  $6,303,135 96.7% $395,950 6.1%
1991 1992 6,292,453 6,104,645 97.0% 186,993 6,291,638 100.0% 395,950 6.3%
1992 1993 6,232,635 6,025,984 96.7% 177,423 6,203,407 99.5% 425,178 6.8%
1993 1994 6,594,502 6,463,440 98.0% 213,058 6,676,498 101.2% 343,182 5.2%
1994 1995 6,656,424 6,483,653 97.4% 229,479 6,713,132 100.9% 286,474 4.3%
1995 1996 6,721,527 6,480,204 96.4% 212,488 6,692,692 99.6% 315,309 4.7%
1996 1997 6,986,031 6,897,817 98.7% 159,073 7,056,890 101.0% 225,631 3.2%
1997 1998 7,003,538 6,832,172 97.6% 166,231 6,998,403 99.9% 231,866 3.3%
1998 1999 7,260,388 7,092,501 97.7% 173,426 7,265,927 100.1% 320,290 4.4%
1999 2000 7,517,238 7,352,830 97.8% 180,621 7,533,451 100.2% 408,713 5.4%

Source: Montgomery County, Ohio, Auditor's Office
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TABLE 5
ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY LAST TEN YEARS
Assessed Value
Tangible Estimated
Tax Collection Real Public Utility Personal Actual Value
Year Year Property Property Property Total Total
1990 1991 $745,231,550 $32,790,340 $76,617,617  $854,639,507 $2,445,792,292
1991 1992 750,810,090 34,621,670 71,633,577 857,065,337 2,455,307,113
1992 1993 753,928,010 35,585,710 67,181,541 856,695,261 2,458,391,903
1993 1994 808,688,600 36,012,530 67,119,616 911,820,746 2,615,029,851
1994 1995 807,499,470 36,222,690 69,928,626 913,650,786 2,623,078,537
1995 1996 812,138,430 34,017,380 69,339,517 915,495,327 2,631,770,962
1996 1997 898,480,630 35,886,430 70,425,059 1,004,792,119 2,884,674,180
1997 1998 901,762,550 36,848,300 73,300,040 1,011,910,890 2,906,512,889
1998 1999 917,110,670 39,178,060 71,164,376 1,027,453,106 2,944,151,764
1999 2000 985,879,090 35,490,280 79,345,524  1,100,714,894 3,169,669,776
Source: Montgomery County, Ohio, Auditor's Office
Assessed Value of Taxable Property Property Tax Rates
$1,200 +
$1,000 -
County
$$600 -
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$200 + 0.3%
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Collection Year
TABLE 6
PROPERTY TAX RATES ALL DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS (PER $1,000 OF
ASSESSED VALUE) LAST TEN YEARS
Tax Collection General Debt Police
Year Year Fund Retirement Pension Total School County Library Rate
1990 1991 5.70 141 0.30 7.41 48.90 13.65 69.96
1991 1992 5.70 1.25 0.30 7.25 48.90 13.65 69.80
1992 1993 5.70 117 0.30 7.17 48.90 13.65 69.72
1993 1994 5.70 117 0.30 7.17 49.81 16.14 73.12
1994 1995 5.70 117 0.30 7.17 49.80 16.64 0.72 74.33
1995 1996 5.70 117 0.30 7.17 53.10 16.64 0.72 77.63
1996 1997 5.70 1.00 0.30 7.00 53.10 16.64 0.72 77.46
1997 1998 5.70 1.00 0.30 7.00 53.10 16.64 0.26 77.00
1998 1999 5.70 0.98 0.30 6.98 53.10 16.64 0.26 76.98
1999 2000 5.70 0.92 0.30 6.92 53.10 16.64 0.26 76.92

Source: Montgomery County, Ohio, Auditor's Office
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TABLE 7
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BILLINGS AND COLLECTIONS LAST TEN YEARS

Total Total Ratio of Total

Fiscal Assessments Assessments Collections to Outstanding
Year Due Collected Amount Due Assessments
1991 $445,549 $422,324 94.8% $23,225
1992 491,047 477,107 97.2% 13,940
1993 661,266 639,597 96.7% 21,669
1994 834,659 789,793 94.6% 44,866
1995 875,666 808,362 92.3% 67,304
1996 893,792 884,674 99.0% 9,118
1997 894,868 857,338 95.8% 37,530
1998 898,529 865,006 96.3% 33,523
1999 1,001,408 970,484 96.9% 30,924
2000 1,104,287 1,075,962 97.4% 28,325

Source: Montgomery County, Ohio, Auditor's Office

Special Assessment Collections Net Bonded Debt Per Capita
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Year Year

TABLE 8
RATIO OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT TO ASSESSED VALUE AND
NET BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA LAST TEN YEARS

Debt Service Ratio of Net Net Bonded
Assessed Gross Bonded Moneys Net Bonded Bonded Debt to Debt Per

Year Population(1) Value(2) Debt(3)(4) Available(3) Debt(3) Assessed Value Capita

1991 60,525 $854,639,507 $22,884,921 $4,780,000 $18,104,921 2.12% $299.13
1992 60,525 857,065,337 18,064,224 1,138,253 16,925,971 1.97% 279.65
1993 60,525 856,695,261 17,880,681 439,561 17,441,120 2.04% 288.16
1994 60,525 911,820,746 16,744,832 413,403 16,331,429 1.79% 269.83
1995 60,525 913,650,786 15,576,504 339,289 15,237,215 1.67% 251.75
1996 60,525 915,495,327 14,355,963 251,309 14,104,654 1.54% 233.04
1997 60,525 1,004,792,119 13,098,471 129,069 12,969,402 1.29% 214.28
1998 60,525 1,011,910,890 11,784,316 161,955 11,622,361 1.15% 192.03
1999 60,525 1,027,453,106 10,418,777 153,118 10,265,659 1.00% 169.61
2000 57,502 1,100,714,894 8,997,168 117,532 8,879,636 0.81% 154.42

Sources:

(1) 1990 & 2000 United States Census Bureau

(2) Montgomery County, Ohio, Auditor's Office.

(3) City of Kettering, Ohio, Department of Finance.

(4) Includes General Obligation Bond Anticipation Notes.
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TABLE 9
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN
DECEMBER 31, 2000
10-1/2% of 5-1/2% of
Assessed Assessed
Valuation(1) Valuation(2)
Overall Debt Limitations $115,575,064 $60,539,319
Gross Indebtedness 10,971,346 10,971,346
Less debt outside limitations:
Voted debt 3,924,352
Special assessment debt 1,288,184 1,288,184
Promissory notes 685,994 685,994
Less debt service available fund balance 117,532 117,532
Net debt within limitations 8,879,636 4,955,284
Legal debt margin within limitations $106,695,428 $55,584,035

Source: City of Kettering, Ohio, Finance Department

(1) Applies to both voted and unvoted debt.
(2) Applies only to unvoted debt.

Legal Debt Margin

Legal Debt Margin

10 /2% Limitation Net Debt
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Ratio of Debt Service to Total General Fund Expenditures
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RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE EXPENDITURES FOR GENERAL BONDED DEBT TO

TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES LAST TEN YEARS

TABLE 10

Ratio of Debt

Total Service to Total
Total General Fund General Fund
Year Principal(1) Interest Debt Service Expenditures Expenditures
1991 $650,000 $1,291,195 $1,941,195 $17,465,000 11.1%
1992 685,000 1,298,004 1,983,004 18,494,798 10.7%
1993 1,077,895 980,703 2,058,598 19,283,346 10.7%
1994 1,662,000 1,029,617 2,691,617 19,462,002 13.8%
1995 1,626,750 956,002 2,582,752 19,913,520 13.0%
1996 1,311,020 884,630 2,195,650 20,520,088 10.7%
1997 1,357,148 826,868 2,184,016 22,654,891 9.6%
1998 1,442,641 764,450 2,207,091 23,538,155 9.4%
1999 1,523,134 697,513 2,220,647 24,939,461 8.9%
2000 1,583,134 625,480 2,208,614 26,113,023 8.5%

Source: City of Kettering, Ohio, Finance Department
(1) Principal payments shown net of refinanced debt.
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TABLE 11
COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT
DECEMBER 31, 2000
Percentage Amount
State of Ohio Applicable Applicable
Net Debt to City of to City of
Jurisdiction Outstanding Kettering Kettering
City of Kettering $8,879,636 100.0% $8,879,636
Kettering City School District 14,422,493 90.7% 13,081,201
Montgomery County 43,268,553 12.2% 5,278,763
Beavercreek Local School District 40,091,083 0.5% 200,455
Total $106,661,765 $27,440,056
Source: Individual jurisdictions.
The City has a charter tax rate and therefore, the City is not subject to the 10 mill limitation of General Obligation debt.
Individual jurisdictions with immaterial amounts of overlapping debt are excluded from this table.
Unemplovment Rate Public School Enrollment
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TABLE 12

DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS LAST TEN YEARS

Public
Per Capita Unemployment School
Year Population(1)(3) Income(3)(5) Rate(4) Enroliment(2)
1991 60,525 $19,229 3.1% 7,353
1992 60,525 20,853 3.5% 7,721
1993 60,525 21,478 2.7% 7,779
1994 60,525 22,186 2.5% 7,853
1995 60,525 23,066 2.1% 7,991
1996 60,525 23,988 2.2% 7,896
1997 60,525 24,948 2.2% 8,044
1998 60,525 25,447 2.0% 7,778
1999 60,525 25,956 1.9% 8,031
2000 57,500 26,475 1.9% 7,725
Sources:

(1) 1990 & 2000 United States Census Bureau
(2) Kettering City School Board, Department of Pupil Personnel.

(3) Prior years' amounts have been restated to reflect current available information.

(4) Ohio Bureau of Employment services.
(5) City of Kettering, Ohio, Finance Department estimate.
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TABLE 13
CONSTRUCTION AND BANK DEPOSITS LAST TEN YEARS

Commercial Construction(1) Residential Construction(1)

Year Number of Permits Value Number of Permits Value Bank Deposits(2)

1991 174 $10,748,963 140 $2,874,578 $6,728,755,000
1992 184 9,112,603 164 5,385,151 4,068,798,000
1993 260 12,563,963 177 7,008,075 3,834,335,000
1994 238 28,871,108 145 4,431,111 4,034,766,000
1995 178 26,306,619 143 7,777,188 3,995,114,000
1996 172 40,184,215 147 8,555,747 3,899,145,000
1997 178 82,833,051 164 8,889,562 3,530,314,000
1998 137 25,430,152 213 10,590,067 3,264,705,000
1999 118 24,932,701 152 8,569,914 2,994,378,000
2000 89 58,217,405 139 9,830,923 191,473,000

Sources:

(1) City of Kettering, Ohio, Department of Planning and Development.
(2) Federal Reserve Bank of Cleveland - amounts are for Montgomery County.

Commercial and Residential Construction Bank Deposits
$7,000 +
$6,000 -
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TABLE 14
PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS (PROPERTY TAXES) DECEMBER 31, 2000
2000 % of Total
Assessed Assessed
Taxpayer Type of Business Valuation Valuation
Dayton Power and Light Co. Gas & electric utility $24,442,830 2.22%
Ohio Bell Telephone Co. Telephone utility 11,570,470 1.05%
Reynolds and Reynolds Automotive parts manufacturer 9,283,210 0.84%
Delphi Automotive Automotive parts manufacturer 8,017,720 0.73%
Kettering Medical Center Healthcare 7,594,430 0.69%
Bank One Credit card services 5,675,440 0.52%
Beerman Corp. Property management 5,208,070 0.47%
Dayton Town & Country, Inc. Property management 4,382,110 0.40%
State Teachers Retirement System Property management 4,310,370 0.39%
Lincoln Park Associates, Ltd. Retirement facility 3,920,250 0.36%
Total 84,404,900 7.67%
All others 1,016,309,994 92.33%
Total $1,100,714,894 100.00%

Source: Montgomery County, Ohio, Auditor's Office
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MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS
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TABLE 15

DATE OF INCORPORATION
FORM OF GOVERNMENT

AREA

MILES OF STREETS

FIRE PROTECTION:

Number of stations

Number of firefighters and officers (exclusive of volunteer firefighters)
POLICE PROTECTION:

Number of stations

Number of police officers
EDUCATION (PUBLIC ONLY):
Attendance centers

Number of classrooms

Number of teachers

Number of students

BUILDING PERMITS ISSUED
RECREATION AND CULTURE:
Number of parks

Recreation complex square footage
Annual attendance at recreation complex
Number of libraries

EMPLOYEES (FULL-TIME ONLY):
Classified service

Exempt

Sources:

City of Kettering, Ohio, Department of Planning and Development

City of Kettering, Ohio, Human Resources Department

City of Kettering, Ohio, Parks, Recreation and Cultural Arts Department
City of Kettering, Ohio, Engineering Department

Kettering City School Board, Department of Personnel

1955
Council - Manager
18.409 Square Miles
244.66

7
49

1
82

12
476
468

7,725
4,465

21 with 408 acres
145,000 sq ft
900,909
2

264
123
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Independent Auditors Report on Compliance and on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of
Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With
Government Auditing Standards

Honorable Mayor, Members of City Council
and City Manager
City of Kettering, Ohio

and

The Honorable Jim Petro
Auditor of State

We have audited the basic financia statements of the City of Kettering, Ohio (the City), as of and
for the year ended December 31, 2000, and have issued our report thereon dated March 24, 2001.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financid audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller Genera of the United States.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s basic financial statements are
free of materia misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of basic financia statement amounts. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over financial
reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion
on the basic financia statements and not to provide assurance on the interna control over financia
reporting. Our consideration of the internal control over financia reporting would not necessarily
disclose al matters in the internal control over financid reporting that might be material
weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more
of the interna control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that
misstatements in amounts that would be materia in relation to the financiad statements being
audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course
of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the interna control over
financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.

1



This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City’s management, the Ohio
Auditor of State, and federal awarding agencies and is not intended to be and should not be used
by anyone other than those specified parties.

KPMe P

March 24, 2001
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance With
Requirements Applicable to Each Major Program, Internal Control
Over Compliance in Accordance With OMB Circular A-133 and
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Honorable Mayor, Members of City Council
and City Manager
City of Kettering, Ohio

and

The Honorable Jim Petro
Auditor of State

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the City of Kettering, Ohio (the City) with the types of
compliance requirements described in te U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB)
Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to its mgor federal program for the
year ended December 31, 2000. The City’s mgjor federa program is identified in the summary of
auditors results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.
Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to its major
federd program is the responsibility of the City’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on the City’ s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with the auditing standards generaly
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financia audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller Genera of the United States; and
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance regquirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a maor federal program
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City’ s compliance with
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit
does not provide alega determination on the City’ s compliance with those requirements.

As described in items 00-1and 00-4 in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs, the City did not comply with requirements regarding Subrecipient Monitoring and
Suspension and Debarment that are applicable to its HOME Investment Partnerships Program.
Compliance with such requirements is necessary, in our opinion, for the City to comply with the
requirements applicable to that program.



In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the preceding paragraph, the City
complied, in al materia respects, with the requirements referred to above that are applicable to its
major federal program for the year ended December 31, 2000.

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the City is respongble for establishing and maintaining effective interna
control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to
federa programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’sinterna control
over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and materia effect on a major federal
program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion
on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB
Circular A-133.

We noted certain matters involving interna control over compliance and its operation that we
consder to be reportable conditions. Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our attention
relating to significant deficienciesin the design or operation of interna control over compliance
that, in our judgment, could adversaly affect the City’s ability to administer amgjor federa
program in accordance with the applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and

grants. Reportable conditions are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
guestioned costs as items 00-1 through 00-4.

A materid weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more internal control
components does not reduce to a relaively low level the risk that noncompliance with the
gpplicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants that would be materid in
relation to a mgjor federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely
period by employees in the norma course of performing their assigned functions. Our
condderation of internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose dl matters in
interna control that might be reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose
all reportable conditions that are also considered to be materia weaknesses. However, of the
reportable conditions described above, we consider items 00-1, 00-2 and 00-4 to be material
weaknesses.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

We have audited the basic financia statements of the City for the year ended December 31, 2000,
and have issued our report thereon dated March 24, 2001. Our audit was performed for the
purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financia statements taken as a whole. The
accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of
additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the basic
financia statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financid statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all materia
respects, in relation to the basic financia statements taken as awhole.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City’s management, the Ohio
Auditor of State and federal awarding agencies and is not intended to be and should not be used
by anyone other than those specified parties.

KPMes LLP

March 24, 2001



CITY OF KETTERING, OHIO

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

For the year ended December 31, 2000

Federal Grant
Federal Grantor/Pass Through Grant CFDA Award
Grantor/Program Title Number Number Date Expenditures

Department of Housing and Urban Devel opment
Direct Programs:

Community Development Block Grant B-98MC-39-0011 14.218 4/18/98 $ 268,144
Community Development Block Grant B-99MC-39-0011 14.218 4/1/99 306,752
Community Development Block Grant B-00MC-39-0011 14.218 3/15/00 350,872

Total CFDA # 14.218 925,768

Passed through the Board of County
Commissioners of Montgomery County:

HOME Investments Partnership Program M-95-DC-39-0208 14.239 12/16/96 103,000
HOME Investments Partnership Program M-96-DC-39-0208 14.239 12/16/97 12,124
HOME Investments Partnership Program M-98-DC-39-0210 14.239 5/25/99 226,076

Total CFDA # 14.239 341,200

Lead Based Paint Hazard Control in

Privately-Owned Housing OHLAG-0056-95 14.900 12/16/95 29,770

Total Passed through the Board of County
Commissioners of Montgomery County 370,970
Total Department of Housing and Urban Devel opment 1,296,738

Department of Defense

AirForce Base Conversion Agency Caretaker Cooperative
Agreement Agreement 12.000 5/24/96 16,323
Total Department of Defense 16,323

Department of Justice

Local Law Enforcement Block Grant Program 98-LBVX-2330 16.592 11/4/98 27,007
National Criminal History Improvement Program 98-RVR399046 16.554 7/29/98 2,500
Total Department of Justice 29,507

Department of Transportation

State and Community Highway Safety 99-GR1-1153 20.600 10/4/99 14,013
State and Community Highway Safety 01192.0 20.600 10/1/99 4,400
State and Community Highway Safety 01-GR1-1431 20.600 10/1/00 2,880
Total Department of Transportation 21,293
TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS $ 1,363,861

See accompanying notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.



CITY OF KETTERING, OHIO
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

December 31, 2000

Note A—General
The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity of all
federal award programs of the City of Kettering, Ohio (the City). The City's reporting entity
is defined in Note 1(a) to the City's basic financial statements. All federal awards received

directly from federa agencies, as well as federa awards passed through other government
agencies are included on the Schedule.

Note B—Basis of Accounting

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federa Awards is presented using the
modified accrua basis of accounting.

Note C—Relationship to Basic Financial Statements
Grant expenditures are reported in the City's major and non-major specia revenue funds.
Note D—Subrecipients

The City was a pass-through entity of the HOME Investment Partnerships Program funds to
one subrecipient, The Franklin Foundation for $103,000.



CITY OF KETTERING, OHIO
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

For the year ended December 31, 2000

(1) SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS

)

©)

(@
()

(€)
@

(€)
(f)

@
(h)

The type of report issued on the basic financial statements: Unqualified opinion

Reportable conditionsin internal control were disclosed by the audit of the financia
statements. None reported

Material weaknesses: None
Noncompliance which is materia to the basic financia statements. None

Reportable conditions in interna control over mgjor programs. Y es
Material weaknesses. Y es

The type of report issued on compliance for major programs. Qualified opinion

Any audit findings which are required to be reported under section .510(a) of OMB
Circular A-133: Yes

Major program: HOME Investment Partnership Program (CFDA # 14.239)
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs. $300,000

Auditee qudified as alow-risk auditee under section .530 of OMB Circular A-133:
Yes

FINDINGSRELATING TOTHE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REPORTED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS:

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS RELATING TO FEDERAL AWARDS:
See findings 00-1 through 00-4.



Finding 00-1; HOME Investments Partner ships Program CFDA #14.239,
Department of Housing and Urban Development — Subr ecipient M onitoring

Criteria

24 CFR 92 establishes requirements for subrecipient monitoring, which require the City to
(1) identify to subrecipient federal award information; (2) monitor activities to ensure
compliance with federa requirements; (3) ensure required audits are performed and
prompt corrective action is taken on audit findings, and (4) to evaluate the impact of
subrecipient activities on the City’s ability to comply with applicable federa regulations.

Condition:

The City did not provide the subrecipient required information relating to the Federa award
(i.e. CFDA title and number) in the agreement between the two entities and no monitoring
occurred to ensure compliance with federal requirements.

Questioned Costs:
$103,000

Effect:

Falure to inform subrecipients of the federa award information could result in
subrecipients improperly reporting expenditures in their schedule of expenditures of federal
awards, expending federal funds for unallowable purposes, or not receiving asingle audit in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133. Additionally, failure to monitor subrepients could
result in federal funds being expended for unallowable purposes and/or the subrecipients
not properly administering the federal program.

Cause:

The City initially considered the service provider to be a “vendor” as opposed to a
“subrecipient” as defined in OMB Circular A-133. As such, they did not believe that it
was necessary to notify the service provider of the federa award information or perform
monitoring activities.

Recommendation:

We recommend the City provide required grant information in subrecipient contracts and
perform onsite monitoring procedures to ensure the subrecipient is in compliance with
requirements that are direct and material to the Home Investment Partnership Program.



Finding 00-2; HOME |nvestments Par tner ships Program CFDA #14.239,
Department of Housing and Ur ban Development —Program | ncome.

Criteria

In order to have adequate controls over program income, segregation of duties should exist
between the receiving of loan payments and recording the payments into the accounting
system or other oversight controls should exist to verify receipts are properly recorded.

Condition:

From February 2000 to September 2000, the same employee received |oan payments and
recorded the payments into the system. Additionaly, there was no oversight to ensure that
program income received was being correctly receipted into the system, and was not being
misappropriated.

Questioned Costs:

None

Effect:

Failure to establish adequate controls over program income could result in inaccurate loan
ba ances and/or |oan repayment proceeds being expended for unallowable purposes.
Cause:

The lack of oversight during a~6 month period was due to employee turnover.
Recommendation:

We recommend the City review the organizational structure and consider changes that will
allow for proper segregation of duties over loan receipts and accounting and implement any
additional interna controls considered necessary to mitigate potentia risks of error.



Finding 00-3; HOME Investments Partner ships Program CFDA #14.239,
Department of Housing and Urban Development — I nadequate M onitoring of

Eligibility

Criteria

The City is responsible for providing tenant based rental assistance to eligible people. This
includes having monitoring controls in place to oversee a third party, who is determining
digibility for the City.

Condition:

The City contracted with a third party to provide digibility verification services as it
pertained to the Tenant Based Rental Assistance Program. However, the City did not
perform any monitoring or verification of the Dayton Metropolitan Housing Authority to
ensure that the eligibility verification services were being performed adequately.

Questioned Costs:

None

Effect:

Failure to adequately monitor digibility of the gpplicants could result in federa funds being
expended for ineligible purposes.

Cause:

The City believes there was no reason to monitor the third party due to their good
reputation and expertise in this environment.

Recommendation:

We recommend the City perform annual reviews of the third party to ensure the eligibility
verification process being performed on behalf of the City is proper.

10



Finding 00-4; HOME Investments Partner ships Program CFDA #14.239,
Department of Housing and Urban Development — Suspension and Debar ment
Requirementsin the Contr act

Criteria

According to the April 2000 OMB Compliance Supplement, an entity is required to receive
certification from its subrecipient that the organization and its principals are not suspended
or debarred.

Condition:

The City did not obtain certification from its subrecipient.
Questioned Costs:

$103,000

Effect:

Failure to receive certification that the subrecipient is neither suspended or debarred, could
result in federa funds being used by prohibited parties.

Cause:

The City was not aware that the Suspension and Debarment requirement applied to the
subrecipients.

Recommendation:

We recommend the City include suspension and debarment language in al subrecipient
contracts.

11






88 East Broad Street
STATE OF OHIO P.O. Box 1140

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR Columbus, Ohio 43216-1140

Telephone  614-466-4514
JiM PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE 800-282-0370

Facsimile  614-466-4490

CITY OF KETTERING

MONTGOMERY COUNTY

CLERK'S CERTIFICATION
This is a true and correct copy of the report which is required to be filed in the Office
of the Auditor of State pursuant to Section 117.26, Revised Code, and which is filed
in Columbus, Ohio.

desan Toubbitt

CLERK OF THE BUREAU

CERTIFIED
MAY 22, 2001
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